
 

 
 

Executive Subcommittee Meeting 
Monday, August 6, 2018 

 
Table of Contents 

 

Contents 
Agenda .................................................................................................................................... 3 
Meeting Minutes .................................................................................................................... 5 
Study Timeline ........................................................................................................................ 9 

Figure 1. Key dates in the study process. ..................................................................................................................................... 9 
Agency Snapshot .................................................................................................................. 10 

Figure 2. Snapshot of the agency’s major organizational units, fiscal year 2017-18 resources (employees and funding), 
successes, and challenges. .......................................................................................................................................................... 10 

Map of State Parks ................................................................................................................ 11 
Figure 3. Map of South Carolina state parks. ............................................................................................................................. 11 

Map of Welcome Centers ..................................................................................................... 12 
Figure 4. Map of S.C. welcome centers. ..................................................................................................................................... 12 

Overview of Agency - Recap ................................................................................................. 13 
Legal Directives .............................................................................................................................................. 14 

Table 1.  Legal duties and responsibilities of SCPRT. ................................................................................................................. 14 
Mission and Vision ......................................................................................................................................... 15 
Organizational Chart ...................................................................................................................................... 15 

Figure 5.  SCPRT Organizational chart as of March 2018. ......................................................................................................... 15 
Film Commission ................................................................................................................... 16 

Overview of the Film Commission ................................................................................................................ 17 
Employee Information related to the Film Commission .............................................................................. 17 

Table 2.  Film commission organizational unit’s employee information. ................................................................................. 17 
Revenue and Funding Sources of the Film Commission .............................................................................. 18 

Generated by the Film Commission ............................................................................................................................................ 18 
Utilized by the Film Commission ................................................................................................................................................. 18 
Table 3.  Agency funding sources utilized by the film commission to achieve the agency’s comprehensive strategic plan in 
FY 2016-17 and 2017-18. ............................................................................................................................................................ 18 

Strategic Plan and Resource Allocation related to the Film Commission ................................................... 18 
Table 4.1. Part of agency’s strategic plan related to the film commission, Objective 2.1.1:  Recruit film/television projects 
that provide positive impacts on S.C.'s economy and employment. ......................................................................................... 19 
Table 4.2. Part of agency’s strategic plan related to the film commission, Objective 2.1.2:  Encourage workforce 
development through educational workshops and production fund grants. ........................................................................... 20 

Products, Services, Customers and Performance of the Film Commission ................................................ 21 
Table 5.  List of the film commission’s deliverables. .................................................................................................................. 22 
Table 6.1.  Additional details about Deliverable #54A:  Administer motion picture incentive program – sales and use tax 
exemption. ................................................................................................................................................................................... 24 
Table 6.2.  Additional details about Deliverable #54B:  Administer motion picture incentive program – wage and supplier 
rebates.......................................................................................................................................................................................... 25 
Table 6.3.  Additional details about Deliverable #54C:  Administer motion picture incentive program – product fund 
grants. ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 26 
Table 6.4.  Additional details about Deliverable #54D:  Administer motion picture incentive program – low rates for 
temporary use of state property. ............................................................................................................................................... 27 

Page 1 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Table 6.5.  Data tracked and performance measure associated with Deliverable #54 (A-D):  Administer motion picture 
incentive program. ....................................................................................................................................................................... 28 
Motion Picture Incentive Act - Economic Impact, Return on Investment, History .................................................................... 30 
Table 6.6. Counties in which film projects did and did not occur from 2007 to 2017. ............................................................ 31 
Table 6.7.  Summary of film incentive history, amount invested, and return on investment. ................................................. 32 
Table 7.1.  Additional details about Deliverable #55:  Promote collaborative production and educational efforts between 
S.C. institutions of higher learning and motion picture related entities. ................................................................................. 34 
Table 7.2.  Data tracked and performance measure associated with Deliverable #55:  Promote collaborative production 
and educational efforts between S.C. institutions of higher learning and motion picture related entities. ............................ 35 
Table 8.1.  Additional details about Deliverable #56:  Provide location scouting assistance to film production companies.
 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................... 36 
Table 8.2.  Data tracked and performance measure associated with Deliverable #56:  Provide location scouting assistance 
to film production companies...................................................................................................................................................... 37 

Agency Recommendations - Film Commission ............................................................................................ 38 
Law Changes................................................................................................................................................................................. 38 
Law Change Recommendation #7 - S.C. Code Ann. 1-30-80 ..................................................................................................... 38 

Appendices ........................................................................................................................... 41 
Appendix A.  Analysis of S.C.’s Film Incentives (December 2011) ............................................................... 42 
Appendix B-1.  Film Project Summary Report (Calendar Year 2007 - 2011) .............................................. 43 
Appendix B-2.  Film Project Summary Report (Calendar Year 2012) .......................................................... 44 
Appendix B-3.  Film Project Summary Report (Calendar Year 2013 - 2017) .............................................. 45 
Appendix C.  Film Impact Qualitative and Quantitative Research (January 2013) ..................................... 46 
Appendix D.  U.S. Production Incentives At-A-Glance (October 2017) ....................................................... 47 

Committee Contact Information .......................................................................................... 48 
End Notes ............................................................................................................................. 50 
 
 
 

  

Page 2 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

 

AGENDA 

Page 3 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

South Carolina 
House of Representatives  

 

 
 

Legislative Oversight Committee 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUBCOMMITTEE  
Chairman Gary E. Clary 

The Honorable Laurie Slade Funderburk  
The Honorable Wm. Weston J. Newton  

The Honorable Robert Q. Williams  
  

Monday, August 6, 2018 
11:00 am 

Room 321, Blatt Building 
Pursuant to Committee Rule 6.8, S.C. ETV shall be allowed access for internet 

streaming whenever technologically feasible.  
  

AGENDA  
  

I. Approval of Meeting Minutes  
 
II. Discussion of the study of the Department of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism  
 
III. Adjournment  

Page 4 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

Page 5 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 Chair Wm. Weston J. Newton  
First Vice-Chair: 
Laurie Slade Funderburk   

Legislative Oversight Committee 
Katherine E. (Katie) Arrington 
William K. (Bill) Bowers 
Neal A. Collins 
MaryGail K. Douglas 
William M. (Bill) Hixon 
Jeffrey E. (Jeff) Johnson 
Robert L. Ridgeway, III 
Bill Taylor 
John Taliaferro (Jay) West, IV 
 

 

Bruce W. Bannister 
Gary E. Clary 
Chandra E. Dillard 
Phyllis J. Henderson 
Joseph H. Jefferson, Jr. 
Mandy Powers Norrell 
Tommy M. Stringer 
Edward R. Tallon, Sr. 
Robert Q. Williams 
 

South Carolina House of Representatives 
Jennifer L. Dobson 
Research Director 
 

 
Post Office Box 11867 

Columbia, South Carolina 29211 

Telephone: (803) 212-6810 • Fax: (803) 212-6811 
 

Room 228 Blatt Building 

Charles L. Appleby IV 
Legal Counsel 

Cathy A. Greer 
Administration Coordinator 

Carmen J. McCutcheon Simon 
Research Analyst/Auditor 
 

 Kendra H. Wilkerson 
Fiscal/Research Analyst 

   
 

 
 

Executive Subcommittee 
Monday, July 9, 2018  

11:00 a.m. 
Blatt Room 321 

 
 

Archived Video Available 
 

I. Pursuant to House Legislative Oversight Committee Rule 6.8, South Carolina ETV was 
allowed access for streaming the meeting. You may access an archived video of this 
meeting by visiting the South Carolina General Assembly’s website 
(http://www.scstatehouse.gov) and clicking on Committee Postings and Reports, then under 
House Standing Committees click on Legislative Oversight. Then, click on Video Archives for a 
listing of archived videos for the Committee. 
 

Attendance 
 

I. Subcommittee Chairman Gary E. Clary calls the Executive Subcommittee meeting to 
order on Monday, July 9, 2018, in Room 321 of the Blatt Building. The following members 
of the Subcommittee are present during all or part of the meeting: Subcommittee 
Chairman Clary, Representative Wm. Weston J. Newton, and Representative Robert Q. 
Williams.

Page 6 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Minutes 
 

I. House Rule 4.5 requires standing committees to prepare and make available to the 
public the minutes of committee meetings, but the minutes do not have to be 
verbatim accounts of meetings. It is the practice of the Legislative Oversight 
Committee to provide minutes for its subcommittee meetings. 

II. Representative Newton moves to approve the minutes from the prior 
Subcommittee meeting. A roll call vote is held, and the motion passes. 

Rep. Newton moves to approve the 
minutes from the Subcommittee’s May 8, 
2018 meeting: 

Yea Nay Not Voting 
(Absent) 

Not Voting 
(Present) 

Rep. Clary     

Rep. Funderburk     

Rep. Newton     

Rep. Williams      

 
Discussion of the Department of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism 

 
I. Subcommittee Chairman Clary explains the purpose of today’s meeting is for the 

Department of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism (SCPRT) to complete its 
presentation on the State Park Service division and provide its presentation on the 
Communications division. 
 

II. Subcommittee Chairman Clary explains that all testimony given to this 
subcommittee, which is an investigating committee, must be under oath.  
Subcommittee Chairman Clary reminds those previously sworn in that they remain 
under oath and swears in Ms. Dawn Dawson-House, Director of Corporate 
Communications. 

 
III. Mr. Phil Gaines, Director of the State Park Service, continues presenting details 

about the agency’s State Park Service division.  Members ask questions, which  
Mr. Gaines answers. 
 

IV. Ms. Dawn Dawson-House, Director of Corporate Communications, presents 
details about the agency’s Communications division.  Members ask questions, 
which Ms. Dawson-House answers. 
 

V. Throughout the meeting, members make motions that are listed on the next pages. 
 
 

Page 7 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Rep. Newton moves that the 
Subcommittee study include a 
recommendation that the General 
Assembly direct SCPRT how to disburse 
the funds for the War Between the States 
Heritage Preserve Commission, as there is 
no Commission to fulfill this duty.  
Additionally, the General Assembly repeal 
the statutes applicable to the War 
Between the States Heritage Preserve 
based on agency testimony that the 
commission does not currently exist. 

Yea Nay Not Voting 
(Absent) 

Not Voting 
(Present) 

Rep. Clary     

Rep. Funderburk     

Rep. Newton     

Rep. Williams      

 
 

Rep. Newton moves that the 
Subcommittee study include a 
recommendation that the agency research 
(1) the cost to create, and annual costs to 
maintain and keep updated, virtual tours 
of each state park and historic location to 
post on the agency website;  
(2) performance measures, if any, that 
may be positively impacted and estimated 
impact considering state park revenue, if 
any; (3) additional ways footage may be 
utilize to market the state domestically 
and internationally; and (4) potential 
dollar return on investment from creation 
and maintenance of the videos. 

Yea Nay Not Voting 
(Absent) 

Not Voting 
(Present) 

Rep. Clary     

Rep. Funderburk     

Rep. Newton     

Rep. Williams      

 
 

VI. There being no further business, the meeting is adjourned. 
 

Page 8 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

STUDY TIMELINE 
 
The House Legislative Oversight Committee’s (Committee) process for studying the Department of Parks, 
Recreation, and Tourism (agency, Department, or SCPRT) includes actions by the full Committee; 
Executive Subcommittee (Subcommittee); the agency; and the public.  Key dates and actions are listed 
below. 
 

• December 19, 2017 - Prioritizes the agency for study 
• January 12, 2018 - Provides the agency notice about the oversight process  
• January 23 - March 1, 2018 - Solicits input about the agency in the form of an online public survey 
• March 1, 2018 - Holds Meeting #1 to obtain public input about the agency 

 

• May 8, 2018 - Holds Meeting #2 to discuss the agency's history; legal directives; mission; vision; 
general information about finances and employees; agency organization; and the state park 
service organizational unit 

• July 9, 2018 - Holds Meeting #3 to continue discussing the state park service organizational unit 
and to discuss the communications organizational unit 

• August 6, 2018 - (TODAY) Holds Meeting #4 to discuss the agency’s film commission 
organizational unit 
  

• February 27, 2015 - Submits its Annual Restructuring and Seven-Year Plan Report 
• January 12, 2016 - Submits its 2016 Annual Restructuring Report 
• September 2016 - Submits its 2015-16 Accountability Report 
• September 2017 - Submits its 2016-17 Accountability Report 
• March 9, 2018 - Submits its Program Evaluation Report  

 

• January 23 - March 1, 2018 - Provides input about the agency via an online public survey 
• Ongoing - Submits written comments on the Committee's webpage on the General Assembly's 

website (www.scstatehouse.gov)\ 
 
 
 
Figure 1. Key dates in the study process. 

Executive Subcommittee Actions 

Department of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism Actions 

Public’s Actions 

Legislative Oversight Committee Actions 

Page 9 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee

http://www.scstatehouse.gov)/


 

 
 

AGENCY SNAPSHOT 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 2. Snapshot of the agency’s major organizational units, fiscal year 2017-18 resources (employees and funding), successes, and challenges.1 
 

Page 10 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

MAP OF STATE PARKS 
 

The map below shows the locations of the South Carolina State Parks as of April 2018.  The parks are maintained by the South Carolina Department 
of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism.  There are 47 parks.  For additional details go to https://southcarolinaparks.com/park-finder and download the 
Quick Reference Guide at the bottom of the page. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 3. Map of South Carolina state parks.2 

Page 11 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee

https://southcarolinaparks.com/park-finder


 

 
 

MAP OF WELCOME CENTERS 
 

The map below shows the locations of the South Carolina Welcome Centers as of April 2018.  The welcome centers are maintained by the South 
Carolina Department of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism.  The nine welcome centers include: 
 

Upstate Midlands and Coast 
• Fair Play I-85 North between SC and Georgia • North Augusta  I-20 East between SC and Georgia 
• Landrum^  I-26 East between SC and NC • Santee  I-95 South near the center of SC 
• Blacksburg  I-85 South between SC and NC • Dillon  I-95 South between SC and NC 
• Fort Mill*  I-77 South between SC and NC • Little River  US Hwy 17 South between SC and NC 
  • Hardeeville*  I-95 North between SC and Georgia 
*Complete renovation to center’s exterior and interior, including technology enhancements for travel assistance, as of 2017. 
^Renovation to center’s interior, including technology enhancements for travel assistance, only. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 4. Map of S.C. welcome centers.3 

Page 12 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

 
 
 
 

OVERVIEW OF AGENCY - RECAP 
 
  

Page 13 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Legal Directives 
 
The General Assembly created SCPRT.4  While the agency is authorized to make and adopt regulations, 
none may affect hunting and fishing except as provided in S.C. Code Ann. Section 51-3-145 (certain acts 
unlawful at state parks).  Table 1 summarizes the general duties and responsibilities the General Assembly 
set for SCPRT. 
 
Table 1.  Legal duties and responsibilities of SCPRT. 
 

Legal Duties and Responsibilities of SCPRT 
The department shall have the following duties and responsibilities in addition to such other functions as may, 
from time to time, be assigned by legislative action or by the State Budget and Control Board: 

 
Subject Matter Duty 
S.C.’s tourist 
attractions 

 Promote, publicize, and advertise5 
 

Recreational areas, 
including existing 
state park system 

 Develop and expand new and existing ones to promote the general health and 
welfare of the people of S.C.6 

 Allocate funds made available to it for development and improvement of park 
properties in the state system and historic sites approved by the agency director 
and director of the South Carolina Archives and History Commission7 

 
Lands under agency’s 
control 

 Borrow money for construction, development, and/or maintenance of it8 
 Enter contracts with the U.S. government for any purpose which will assist the 

agency in utilizing it9 
 Lease or convey portions of it to municipalities and other political subdivisions 

charged with the responsibility of providing parks and recreation facilities10 
Lands not under 
agency’s control 

 Borrow money to acquire it11 
 Enter contracts with the U.S. government to acquire it12 

 
Natural facilities such 
as mountains and 
coastal plains of S.C. 
(both those owned 
and not owned by 
the agency) 

 Develop a coordinated plan to… 
o attract many visitors in all seasons to take advantage of the natural scenery, 

the outdoor sports, including hunting, fishing and swimming, together with 
other recreational activities such as golfing, boating and sightseeing13 

o preserve and perpetuate S.C.'s rich historical heritage by acquiring and 
owning, recognizing, marking and publicizing areas, sites, buildings and 
other landmarks and items of national and statewide historical interest and 
significance to the history of S.C.14  

 
Timber and game  Manage timber and game with the available services of other agencies, provided, 

that the State Forestry Commission shall continue the forestry program authorized 
under the provisions of Section 48-23-270.15 
 

Current and potential 
future resources 

 Study and provide report 
o Ascertain the state's present park, parkway and outdoor recreational 

resources and facilities, the need for such resources and facilities, and the 
extent to which these needs are now being met.16  

Page 14 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Mission and Vision 
The agency provides S.C. Code Ann. 51-1-60, as the basis for its mission and vision.   
 
SCPRT's mission is to “grow South Carolina’s economy by fostering sustainable tourism economic development and effectively marketing our state to 
increase visitation and improve the quality of life for all South Carolinians.”17 
 
SCPRT's vision is to  

Grow the state (the economy, jobs, the product base, etc.);  
Enhance the authentic experiences (remain true to what makes South Carolina special);  
Sustain the resources (protect and preserve.); and  
Lead the way.18 

 
 Organizational Chart 
Figure 4 includes an organizational chart, current as of March, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 5.  SCPRT Organizational chart as of March 2018.19 

Page 15 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

FILM COMMISSION 
 
  

Page 16 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Overview of the Film Commission 
 
The film commission is responsible for recruiting film and television projects and supporting the 
development of the state's film industry through grant programs and educational workshops. 
 
 
Employee Information related to the Film Commission 
 
In the Program Evaluation Report, the Committee asks the agency to provide information about the 
employees in each of the agency’s organizational units.  Table 2 includes the information provided by the 
agency. 
 
 
Table 2.  Film commission organizational unit’s employee information. 

Details 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 

What is the turnover rate? 0.00% 40.00% 0.00% 

Is employee satisfaction evaluated?    

Is anonymous employee feedback allowed?    

Do any positions require a certification (e.g., teaching, medical, 
accounting, etc.)    

Did the agency pay for, or provide classes/instruction needed 
to maintain all, some, or none of required certifications? N/A N/A N/A 

 
 
  

Page 17 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Revenue and Funding Sources of the Film Commission 
 
Generated by the Film Commission 
In the Program Evaluation Report, the Committee asks the agency to provide information about its 
revenue sources.  The film commission did not generate any revenue during fiscal years 2015-16 or 2016-
17.   
 
Utilized by the Film Commission 
Table 3 includes information on funding sources utilized by the film commission. 
 
Table 3.  Agency funding sources utilized by the film commission to achieve the agency’s comprehensive strategic 
plan in FY 2016-17 and 2017-18.20 
 

Revenue Sources utilized Recurring 
or one-
time?  

State, 
Federal, or 

Other? 

Spent to 
achieve plan 
in 2016-17 

Percent of 
total 
agency 
spent 

Budgeted to 
achieve plan in 
2017-18 

Percent 
of total 
agency 
spent 

Motion Picture Incentive 
Act Recurring Other $11,942,641 8.88% $16,173,498 11.50% 

Total utilized by the Film Commission: $11,942,641 8.88% $16,173,498 11.50% 

 
 

 
 

Strategic Plan and Resource Allocation related to the Film Commission 
 
In the Program Evaluation Report (PER), the Committee asks an agency the intended public benefit of each 
aspect of its strategic plan and how it allocates its human and financial resources to accomplish its goals 
(i.e., broad expression of a long-term priority) and objectives (i.e., specific, measurable and achievable 
description of an effort the agency is implementing to achieve a goal).21  The Committee also asks the 
agency to list any funds the agency spent or transferred not toward the agency’s comprehensive strategic 
plan.  All revenue sources associated with the film commission organizational unit were spent toward the 
agency’s comprehensive strategic plan. 
 
Tables 4.1 - 4.2 provide information on the amount of funding and number of employees utilized to 
accomplish the portions of the strategic plan associated with the film commissions. 
 
 
 

Page 18 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Table 4.1. Part of agency’s strategic plan related to the film commission, Objective 2.1.1:  Recruit film/television projects that provide positive impacts on S.C.'s 
economy and employment. 
 

GOAL 2 Encourage business development and economic growth 
 
 

Strategy 2.1 Develop the state's film industry through project recruitment and educational opportunities 
 
 

Objective 2.1.1 Recruit film/television projects that provide positive impacts on S.C.'s economy and employment 
 
 

Responsible Employee(s): Mr. Dan Rogers (responsible for 30 years) 
 

Employee have input in budget? Yes, Mr. Rogers has input into the budget for Objective 2.1.1 
 

 
External Partner(s):   None 

 
 

 # of FTE 
equivalents 

utilized  

 Amount Spent  
(including employee 

salaries/wages and benefits)  

% of Total Available to 
Spend 

2016-17 1.75  $11,760,575  6.00% 

2017-18 1.75  $15,933,498  9.24% 

 
 

Intended Public Benefit/Outcome 
Provided employment for S.C.-based film crews, spending with S.C.-based  
supplier companies and generate greater hotel occupancy for S.C. hotels 

  

Page 19 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

 
Table 4.2. Part of agency’s strategic plan related to the film commission, Objective 2.1.2:  Encourage workforce development through educational workshops and 
production fund grants. 
 

GOAL 2 Encourage business development and economic growth 
 
 

Strategy 2.1 Develop the state's film industry through project recruitment and educational opportunities 
 
 

Objective 2.1.2 Encourage workforce development through educational workshops and production fund grants 
 
 

Responsible Employee(s): Mr. Tom Clark (responsible for 11 years) 
 

Employee have input in budget? Yes, Mr. Clark has input into the budget for Objective 2.1.2 
 

 
External Partner(s):   Higher education institutions and K-12 education institutions 

 
 

 # of FTE 
equivalents 

utilized  

 Amount Spent  
(including employee 

salaries/wages and benefits)  

% of Total Available to 
Spend 

2016-17 0.25  $182,068  0.09% 

2017-18 0.25  $240,000  0.14% 

 
 

Intended Public Benefit/Outcome 
Provide students exposure to potential careers in the film industry 

 
 

Page 20 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Products, Services, Customers and Performance of the Film Commission 
 
In the Program Evaluation Report (PER), the Committee asks an agency to provide a list of its deliverables (i.e., products and services) as well as 
additional information related to laws, customers, costs, and potential negatives impacts.  The information provided by the agency, applicable to 
this organizational unit, is provided on the next pages. 
 
Additionally the PER asks the agency to provide its performance measures.  The agency was asked to categorize each measure based on the 
definitions below.22  After each product or service, is a chart with information on the measures, if any, the agency uses to gauge its performance in 
providing the product or service.23 
 

Types of Performance Measures:  
Outcome Measure - A quantifiable indicator of the public and customer benefits from an agency's actions.  Outcome measures are used to 
assess an agency's effectiveness in serving its key customers and in achieving its mission, goals and objectives.  They are also used to direct 
resources to strategies with the greatest effect on the most valued outcomes.  Outcome measures should be the first priority.  Example - 
% of licensees with no violations. 
 
Efficiency Measure - A quantifiable indicator of productivity expressed in unit costs, units of time, or other ratio-based units.  Efficiency 
measures are used to assess the cost-efficiency, productivity, and timeliness of agency operations.  Efficiency measures measure the 
efficient use of available resources and should be the second priority.  Example - cost per inspection 
 
Output Measure - A quantifiable indicator of the number of goods or services an agency produces.  Output measures are used to assess 
workload and the agency's efforts to address demands.  Output measures measure workload and efforts and should be the third priority.  
Example - # of business license applications processed. 
 
Input/Activity Measure - Resources that contribute to the production and delivery of a service.  Inputs are "what we use to do the work."  
They measure the factors or requests received that explain performance (i.e. explanatory).  These measures should be the last priority.  
Example - # of license applications received. 

Page 21 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Table 5 includes an overview of the deliverables provided by the film commission and Tables 6.1 - 8.2 include additional information about each of 
the deliverables.  If the details of a deliverable were previously provided during the agency’s presentation of one of its other organizational units, 
the details are not repeated in this packet. 
 
Table 5.  List of the film commission’s deliverables. 
 

Item #1 Deliverable Does law require, allow, or not address it? 

54A Administer motion picture incentive program: Sales and use tax exemption Allowed by S.C. Code Ann. Section 12-62-40. 
Certificate of Exemption 

54B Administer motion picture incentive program: Wage and supplier rebates 
Allowed by S.C. Code Ann. Section 12-62-50. 
Tax rebate for employment of persons subject 
to South Carolina income tax withholdings.  

54C Administer motion picture incentive program: Product fund grants 

 
Allowed by S.C. Code Ann. Section 12-62-60. 
Distribution of admissions taxes; rebates to 
motion picture production companies; 
promotion of collaborative efforts between 
institutions of higher learning and motion 
picture related entities. 
 

54D Administer motion picture incentive program: Low rates for temporary use of state 
property 

 
Allowed by S.C. Code Ann. Section 12-62-70. 
Temporary use of underutilized state property 
by motion picture production company; use of 
state property for less than seven days. 
 

                                                 
1 Item numbers are the ones utilized in agency’s program evaluation report. 

Page 22 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Item #1 Deliverable Does law require, allow, or not address it? 

55 Promote collaborative production and educational efforts between S.C. institutions 
of higher learning and motion picture related entities 

 
Required by S.C. Code Ann. Section 12-62-
60(D). Distribution of admissions taxes; rebates 
to motion picture production companies; 
promotion of collaborative efforts between 
institutions of higher learning and motion 
picture related entities. 
 

56 Provide location scouting assistance to film production companies 

 
Not specifically mentioned in law, but provided 
to achieve the requirements of S.C. Code Ann. 
Section 1-30-80(B). Effective July 1, 2008, the 
South Carolina Film Commission of the 
Department of Commerce is transferred to the 
Department of Parks, Recreation and Tourism 
and becomes a separate division of the 
Department of Parks, Recreation and Tourism. 
 

 
  

Page 23 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

 Table 6.1.  Additional details about Deliverable #54A:  Administer motion picture incentive program – sales and use tax exemption. 
 

Deliverable #54A24 
Deliverable: Administer motion picture incentive program 

 
 

Components: 
 
Sales and Use Tax Exemption –  

1) Accept, evaluate, and approve/deny applications from motion picture production companies (MPPC) which 
desire to be relieved from paying the state and local sales and use taxes collected by S.C. Department of Revenue 
(SCDOR);  

2) Work with SCDOR and a representative from the MPPC on the MPPC's reporting of its expenditures and other 
information necessary to take advantage of the tax relief; and 

3) Upon completion of the motion picture, accept a report from the MPPC of the actual expenditures made in S.C. 
in connection with the filming or production of the motion picture.   

  
 

Greatest harm if not provided:   Elimination of this exemption would limit S.C.'s ability to effectively recruit motion picture projects. 
 
 

How General Assembly can help 
avoid harm, other than money: 

 

Allow SCDOR to issue sales and use tax exemptions to qualified motion picture projects. 
 
 
 

Other agencies whose mission 
the deliverable may fit within:   

None 
 

 
 

No change in law would be required to curtail or eliminate the deliverable. 
Deliverable is allowed, but not specifically required, by S.C. Code Ann. Section 12-62-40. Certificate of Exemption. 

  

Page 24 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

 Table 6.2.  Additional details about Deliverable #54B:  Administer motion picture incentive program – wage and supplier rebates. 
 

Deliverable #54B25 
Deliverable: Administer motion picture incentive program 

 
 

Components: 
 
Wage Rebates –  

1) Create, provide, accept, evaluate, and approve/deny applications for a certificate of completion from a motion 
picture production company (MPPC) once filing in S.C. is complete (MPPC must have this certificate before filing 
for the rebate); and 

2) Create, provide, accept, evaluate (which involves review of a report from the MMPC that outlines information 
about the project and all employees involved and may involve inspection of the MPPC's payroll books and 
records), and approve/deny the filed claim for a rebate on a portion of the S.C. payroll of the employment of 
persons, directly involved in the filming or post-production, subject to S.C. income tax withholdings in connection 
with production of the motion picture.   

  
 

Greatest harm if not provided:   Elimination of film incentives will drastically reduce the number of motion picture projects in S.C., eliminating jobs for 
instate film crew and spending with instate supplier companies. Potential film projects would very likely go to states 
active incentive programs, such as Georgia and North Carolina.   
 
 

How General Assembly can help 
avoid harm, other than money: 

 

Implement new tax credits available to eligible film production companies working in S.C. 
 
 
 

Other agencies whose mission 
the deliverable may fit within:   

None 
 

 
No change in law would be required to curtail or eliminate the deliverable. 

Deliverable is allowed, but not specifically required, by S.C. Code Ann. Section  
12-62-50. Tax rebate for employment of persons subject to  

South Carolina income tax withholdings.   

Page 25 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

 Table 6.3.  Additional details about Deliverable #54C:  Administer motion picture incentive program – product fund grants. 
 

Deliverable #54C26 
Deliverable: Administer motion picture incentive program 

 
 

Components: 
 
Supplier Rebates –  
Distribute part of the general funds portion of admissions tax (rebate) to motion picture production companies (MPPC) 
SCPRT identifies. The rebate may be up to 30% of the expenditures made by the MPPC in the state if the MPPC has a 
minimum in-state expenditure of one million dollars. The distribution of rebates may not exceed the amount annually 
funded to the agency for the S.C. Film Commission from the admissions tax collected by the state. 

  
 

Greatest harm if not provided:   Elimination of film incentives will drastically reduce the number of motion picture projects in S.C., eliminating jobs for 
instate film crew and spending with instate supplier companies. Potential film projects would very likely go to states 
active incentive programs, such as Georgia and North Carolina.   
 
 

How General Assembly can help 
avoid harm, other than money: 

 

Implement new tax credits available to eligible film production companies working in S.C. 
 
 

Other agencies whose mission 
the deliverable may fit within:   

None 
 

 
 
 

Law change would be required to curtail or eliminate the deliverable. 
Deliverable is required by S.C. Code Ann. Section 12-62-60. Distribution of admissions taxes;  

rebates to motion picture production companies; promotion of collaborative efforts  
between institutions of higher learning and motion picture related entities. 

  

Page 26 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

 
 Table 6.4.  Additional details about Deliverable #54D:  Administer motion picture incentive program – low rates for temporary use of state property. 
 

Deliverable #54D27 
Deliverable: Administer motion picture incentive program 

 
 

Components: 
 
Low Rates for Temporary Use of State Property –  
Provide motion picture location scouting services and negotiate below-market rates for temporary use, no more than 
twelve months, by motion picture production companies, of space the Department of Administration has determined to 
be underutilized state property. 

  
 

Greatest harm if not provided:   Elimination would limit motion picture recruitment efforts for some projects.   
 
 

How General Assembly can help 
avoid harm, other than money: 

 

Encourage state and local governments to work cooperatively with motion picture production companies in the use of 
unused buildings or properties. 
 
 

Other agencies whose mission 
the deliverable may fit within:   

None 
 

 
 

No change in law would be required to curtail or eliminate the deliverable. 
Deliverable is allowed, but not specifically required, by S.C. Code Ann. Section  

12-62-70. Temporary use of underutilized state property by motion picture  
production company; use of state property for less than seven days.  

Page 27 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Table 6.5.  Data tracked and performance measure associated with Deliverable #54 (A-D):  Administer motion picture incentive program. 
 

Customers/Clients   

Does the agency evaluate….   Costs 

customer satisfaction? No  Does the agency know the….   

outcome obtained?  
Yes (A-C);  

No (D) 
 

cost it incurs, per unit? Yes (B, C); 
No (A, D) 

Does agency know the annual number of…   Does the law allow the agency to…   

potential customers? 
No (A, B, D); 

Yes (C) 
 

charge to cover the agency’s costs? No (A, C-D); 
Yes (B) 

customers served? 
Yes (A-C);  

No (D) 
 

 

 
Table Note:  A = Sales and use tax exemption; B = Wage and supplier rebates; C = Product fund grants; and D = Low rates for temporary use of state property.  
 

Specific Performance Measures Tracked 

Performance Measure Type of 
Measure  2012-13 

(June - July) 
2013-14 

(June - July) 
2014-15 

(June - July) 
2015-16 

(June - July) 
2016-17 

(June - July) 
2017-18 

(June - July) 
 
S.C. Film Hires, Total Number 
 
Required by: State government 
+ Agency Selected 
 
 
 
 

Outcome 

Target:   n/a* n/a* n/a* n/a* n/a* n/a* 

Actual:  2,926 2,196 3,164 2,301 2,479 

Trend Line 
 

 
 

Page 28 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Specific Performance Measures Tracked 

Performance Measure Type of 
Measure  2012-13 

(June - July) 
2013-14 

(June - July) 
2014-15 

(June - July) 
2015-16 

(June - July) 
2016-17 

(June - July) 
2017-18 

(June - July) 
 
Film-Related S.C. Spending 
(qualified spend only), Total 
Amount 
 
Required by: State government 
+ Agency Selected 

Outcome 

Target:   n/a* n/a* n/a* n/a* n/a* n/a* 

Actual:  $15,458,855  $18,455,460  $29,075,355  $19,860,414  $38,093,948  

Trend Line 
 

 
 

 
Film-Related Hotel Nights, 
Total Number 
 
Required by: Agency selected 
(not required by state or 
federal government) 

Outcome 

Target:   n/a* n/a* n/a* n/a* n/a* n/a* 

Actual:  6,108 9,316 8,686 9,781 7,473 

Trend Line 
 

 
 

Table Note: In some of the performance measures associated with the deliverables, an “n/a” may appear for target values.  The agency states in the Program 
Evaluation Report PER that the target values are listed as "n/a" for outcome measures if external factors beyond the agency's control significantly influence the 
outcome of the performance measure.  For example, film-related performance measure outcomes depend greatly on a number of external factors including the 
type of projects recruited, the financial scope of the projects, time of year, and location of the project.  The agency states it cannot reasonably predict these 
outcomes for future fiscal years as these factors are resultant of the needs of the motion picture production companies.   

Page 29 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Motion Picture Incentive Act - Economic Impact, Return on Investment, History 
In a June 4, 2018, letter to the agency, the Subcommittee asks the agency various questions about the 
Motion Picture Incentive Act.  The agency provides the information below in a June 27, 2018, letter to the 
Subcommittee.28 
 

Incentives Offered by S.C. in the Past29 
 
Below is a timeline which indicates the types of incentives S.C. has provided to recruit film and television 
and, for each change in incentive, the agency’s understanding of the reason for the change. 
 

o 1997 - Income Tax Credits 
 20% credit for cash investment in a S.C. motion picture project 
 20% credit for investment in a motion picture production or post-production facility 

 
o 2005 - Cash Rebates  

 15% wage rebate; 15% supplier rebate; and sales and use tax exemption  
 The income tax credits provided from 1997 to 2005 proved ineffective for recruiting 

motion picture projects.  Wage and supplier cash rebates were established in order 
to make S.C. more competitive in motion picture project recruitment. 

 
o 2006 - Cash Rebates Increase 

 20% wage rebate; and 30% supplier rebate 
 Increase occurs via a proviso to the state budget 
 The 15% wage and supplier rebates were determined to be too low to be effective. 

Rebate levels increased to boost S.C.'s competitiveness. 
 

o 2012 - Cash Rebates Decrease 
 15% wage rebate; and 15% supplier rebate 
 The film rebate proviso was deleted after an unsuccessful attempt by the agency to 

have increased rebate levels codified. 
 

o 2013 - Cash Rebates Increase and are codified 
 20% (non-state resident) and 25% (state resident) wage rebate; 30% supplier rebate 
 Wage and supplier cash rebate levels are codified. 

 
 

Economic Impact and Return on Investment30 
 
AECOM’s2 Analysis of S.C.’s Film Incentives is the most recent economic impact study of film.  It was 
published in December 2011, utilizing data current as of November 2011.  Appendix A includes the 
report.  It is also available on the Committee website.31   
 
This economic impact study covered nine qualified film productions that occurred from 2007 through 
2011.  The study found, from 2007 through 2011, S.C. awarded approximately $21 million in wage and 
supplier rebates, which generated $86.9 million in sales for S.C. businesses and supported the 

                                                 
2 Project management company  

Page 30 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

equivalency of 1,610 full-time jobs for S.C. residents.  It further found the following for every $100 spent 
on rebates: 
• $31 generated in taxes, a net loss as is the case with many other film incentive programs in the U.S., 
• $410 generated in total economic output (i.e., sales at state businesses), and 
• $230 generated in wages to S.C. residents.32 
   
S.C. Film Commission’s Film Project Summary Reports, include every film or television production project, 
both incentivized and nonincentivized, the S.C. Film Office either recruited or assisted during calendar 
years 2007 through 2017.  Appendix B-1, B-2, and B-3 include these reports.  They are also available on 
the Committee website.  Each entry in the reports list the project title, total rebate amount, total 
qualified spending in S.C., total hotel room nights and total number of S.C. crew hires.   
 
Table 6.6 includes a list of the counties in which film projects did and did not occur during this time 
period.  Table 6.7 includes a summary of S.C. film incentives, amount invested, and return on investment. 
 
 
Table 6.6. Counties in which film projects did and did not occur from 2007 to 2017. 
 

 
Film project production 

started in 2007-2012 

 
Film project production 

started in 2012 
 

 
Film project production  

started in 2013-17 
 

 
No film projects in  
2007 through 2017 

 
Aiken 

Abbeville 
Anderson 
Bamberg 
Beaufort 
Berkeley 
Calhoun 

Charleston 
Cherokee 
Chester 

Clarendon 
Dillon 

Dorchester 
Edgefield 
Florence 

Georgetown 
Greenville 

Greenwood 
 

 
Horry 
Jasper 

Kershaw 
Lancaster 
Laurens 

Lee 
Lexington 
Newberry 
Oconee 

Orangeburg 
Pickens 
Richland 

Spartanburg 
Sumter 
Union 
York 

 

 
Anderson 
Beaufort 

Charleston 
Darlington 
Edgefield 
Fairfield 
Florence 

Greenville 
Horry 

Kershaw 
Lee 

Lexington 
Marion 

Orangeburg 
Richland 

Spartanburg 
Sumter 

York 
 

 
Aiken 

Abbeville 
Anderson 
Bamberg 
Beaufort 
Berkeley 

Charleston 
Cherokee 
Chester 

Chesterfield 
Colleton 

Dorchester 
Fairfield 
Florence 

Georgetown 
Greenville 

Horry 
Kershaw 

 

 
Lee 

Lexington 
Marion 

Newberry 
Oconee 

Orangeburg 
Pickens 
Richland 

Spartanburg 
Sumter 

York 
 

 
Allendale 
Barnwell 
Hampton 
Marlboro 

McCormick 
Saluda 

Williamsburg 

  

Page 31 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Table 6.7.  Summary of film incentive history, amount invested, and return on investment.33 
 

History of Film Incentives  Investment and Return 

Incentive Details  Wage and supplier 
rebates provided 

Sales generated for S.C. Businesses and 
Wages generated for S.C. Residents 

Sales and Wages 
generated per  

$1 invested 

 
20% income tax credit 

 
(Incentive applications submitted from FY 1996-97 through FY 2003-04) 

  Info not requested Info not requested Info not requested 

 
15% Wage rebate 

15% Supplier rebate 
 

(Incentive applications submitted in FY 2004-05) 

  Info not requested Info not requested Info not requested 

 
20% Wage rebate 

30% Supplier rebate 
 

(Incentive applications submitted from FY 2005-06 through FY 2010-11) 

  

 
 

$43*  
million 

 
 

$143.8*  
million 

 
 

$3.34  
for every  

$1 invested 
 

 
15% Wage rebate 

15% Supplier rebate 
 

(Incentive applications submitted during FY 2011-12) 

  

 
$0 

No incentive applications  
submitted 

 
$0 

 
$0  

invested 

 
20%-25% Wage rebate 

30% Supplier rebate 
 

(Incentive applications submitted from FY 2012-13 through the present) 

  

 
$57.8  

million 

 
$120.7  
million 

 
$2.09  

for every  
$1 invested 

 
Table Note:  The wage and supplier rebate percentage applicable is determined when the production submits its application to receive incentives, but SCPRT does not count the total rebates and 
sales/wages generated until the production closes.  The asterisk (*) indicates $8.9 million of the total wage and supplier rebates and $22.7 million of the total sales and wages generated was from 
Army Wives - Season 6.  It is reported in the SC Film Project Summary Report (2012), when the production closed, but included in the group of productions that received 20% wage rebate and 30% 
supplier rebate because the show applied for the incentives in 2010-11.   

Page 32 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Strategic Marketing and Research, Inc. (SMARI) 2013 Film Impact Qualitative and Quantitative Research 
report was the result of a research study to determine the impact of film on travel.  SMARI is SCPRT’s 
contracted research vendor.  Appendix C includes the report.  It is also available on the Committee 
website.34   
 
The key findings of the study were as follows: 

• Three increasingly conservative quantitative research efforts and four focus groups have revealed 
that television and film productions undoubtedly influence leisure travel. 

• The most recent and most conservative estimate of incremental travel attributable to the 
selected S.C. productions is 7.8%.  This suggests that the productions may have influenced 1.6 
million household visits to S.C. and approximately $1.7 billion in travel revenue during 2003 to 
2013. 

• The productions that are most likely to influence travel include TV shows about travel or food, 
romance/drama movies or TV shows, and sitcoms. 

• The specific production attributes that are most likely to be a major influence on travel include 
coastal scenery, natural scenery, relaxation, historical sites, and iconic locations/landmarks.35 

 
 
 

Incentive Options Offered by Other States36 
 
U.S. Production Incentives At-A-Glance, is the most recent summary report of film incentives offered by 
other states in the U.S., which the S.C. Film Office regularly tracks.  Appendix D includes the report.  It is 
also available on the Committee’s webpage.37  As indicated in this document, there are many states that - 
like S.C. - offer rebate or grant incentives.  Funding levels for states offering rebates or grants vary from 
$750,000 per year (Colorado) to $34 million (North Carolina).   
 
Tax credit film incentives, offered by some states (e.g., Georgia, New York, and California) have much 
higher funding caps or, in some cases, no funding cap.  In general, SCPRT believes cash rebates seem to 
be the preferred type of incentive for many motion picture production companies.  Like many other 
states, the challenge S.C. faces with cash rebate incentives is the relatively low funding levels compared 
to states that offer tax credit incentives.  However, unlike states that offer transferable tax credits, S.C. 
can easily track the state's investment in film incentives each year.  In other words, with cash rebates, (1) 
the state knows exactly how much film incentives cost, and (2) when those costs are paid. 
 
Although SCPRT has not conducted a formal analysis of alternative incentive options, the agency regularly 
monitors the changes in other state's film incentive programs and the impacts those changes have on 
that state's film industry.  In general, SCPRT believes the perceived stability of a state's film incentive 
program can be a significant factor for motion picture production companies during the site selection 
process.  As has occurred in New Mexico, Michigan, Louisiana, and North Carolina, any actual or 
perceived instability of a film incentive program can have an immediate negative impact on a state's film 
recruitment efforts.  Thus, any potential increases to S.C.'s film rebate percentages or funding levels must 
be sustainable in both the long and short-term. 

Page 33 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Table 7.1.  Additional details about Deliverable #55:  Promote collaborative production and educational efforts between S.C. institutions of higher learning and 
motion picture related entities. 
 

Deliverable #5538 
Deliverable: Promote collaborative production and educational efforts between S.C. institutions of higher 

learning and motion picture related entities 
 

 
Components: 

 
1) Conduct film educational workshops; and 
2) Production Fund Grants 
 

  
Greatest harm if not provided:   Elimination of this program would limit the development of S.C.'s resident film crews, making them less competitive than 

film crews from neighboring states. 
 
 

How General Assembly can help 
avoid harm, other than money: 

 

Provide professional development courses through the public education system, S.C. Technical College System, or 
institutions of higher education. 
 
 

Other agencies whose mission 
the deliverable may fit within:   

Higher education institutions; and S.C. Technical College System 
 

 
 
 

Law change would be required to curtail or eliminate the deliverable. 
Deliverable is required by S.C. Code Ann. Section 12-62-60(D). Distribution of admissions taxes;  

rebates to motion picture production companies; promotion of collaborative efforts  
between institutions of higher learning and motion picture related entities. 

 
  

Page 34 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Table 7.2.  Data tracked and performance measure associated with Deliverable #55:  Promote collaborative production and educational efforts between S.C. 
institutions of higher learning and motion picture related entities. 
 

Customers/Clients   

Does the agency evaluate….   Costs 

customer satisfaction? Yes  Does the agency know the….   

outcome obtained?  No  cost it incurs, per unit? Yes 

Does agency know the annual number of…   Does the law allow the agency to…   

potential customers? No  charge to cover the agency’s costs? No 

customers served? Yes    

 
 
 
 
 

Specific Performance Measures Tracked: None 

 
 
 
  

Page 35 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

 Table 8.1.  Additional details about Deliverable #56:  Provide location scouting assistance to film production companies. 
 

Deliverable #5639 
Deliverable: Provide location scouting assistance to film production companies 

 
 

Components: 
 
The S.C. Film Office provides location scouting assistance to…  

1) recruit potential film projects to the state; and  
2) assist active film projects with specific location needs.  

 
  

Greatest harm if not provided:   Elimination would limit motion picture recruitment efforts for some projects. 
 
 

How General Assembly can help 
avoid harm, other than money: 

 

Encourage state and local governments to work cooperatively with motion picture production companies in the use of 
unused buildings or properties.   
 
 

Other agencies whose mission 
the deliverable may fit within:   

None 
 

 
 
 

No change in law would be required to curtail or eliminate the deliverable. 
Deliverable is not specifically mentioned in law, but provided to achieve the requirements of S.C. Code Ann. 1-30-80(B).  

Effective July 1, 2008, the S.C. Film Commission of the Department of Commerce is transferred to the Department of  
Parks, Recreation and Tourism and becomes a separate division of the Department of Parks, Recreation and Tourism. 

 
 
 
  

Page 36 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Table 8.2.  Data tracked and performance measure associated with Deliverable #56:  Provide location scouting assistance to film production companies. 
 

Customers/Clients   

Does the agency evaluate….   Costs 

customer satisfaction? Yes  Does the agency know the….   

outcome obtained?  Yes  cost it incurs, per unit? No 

Does agency know the annual number of…   Does the law allow the agency to…   

potential customers? No  charge to cover the agency’s costs? No 

customers served? Yes    

 
 
 
 
 
 

Specific Performance Measures Tracked: None 

 
 
 

Page 37 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Agency Recommendations - Film Commission 
In the Program Evaluation Report, the Committee asks the agency to provide a list of recommendations 
related to internal changes and changes in laws, which may improve the agency’s efficiency and 
effectiveness, or update antiquated laws.  The agency’s recommendations, which are listed below, relate 
to the agency’s film commission organizational unit.  Note, the law change recommendation number is the 
number utilized in the agency’s Program Evaluation Report. 
 
Law Changes 
 

Law Change Recommendation #7 - S.C. Code Ann. 1-30-80 
Law S.C. Code Ann. 1-30-80.  Department of Parks, Recreation and Tourism 
Summary of 
Current Law 

SCPRT designated as a Department within the Executive Branch of State 
Government. Film Office transferred to SCPRT 

Recommendation 
& Rationale 

Modify Film Commission Objectives to align with deliverables and public benefit. 
 

Law 
Recommendation 
Number 

7 

Agency’s 
Recommended 
Language 

Section 1-30-80. Department of Parks, Recreation and Tourism. 
 
 (A) The following agencies, boards, and commissions, including all of the allied, 
advisory, affiliated, or related entities as well as the employees, funds, property, 
and all contractual rights and obligations associated with any such agency, except 
for those subdivisions specifically included under another department, are 
transferred to and incorporated in and must be administered as part of the 
Department of Parks, Recreation and Tourism to include a Parks, Recreation and 
Tourism Division. 
 
 Department of Parks, Recreation and Tourism, formerly provided for at 
Sections 51-1-10, 51-3-10, 51-7-10, 51-9-10, and 51-11-10, et seq. 
 
 (B)(1) Effective July 1, 2008, the South Carolina Film Commission of the 
Department of Commerce is transferred to the Department of Parks, Recreation 
and Tourism and becomes a separate division of the Department of Parks, 
Recreation and Tourism. 
 
  (2) The South Carolina Film Commission as established in this section as a 
division of the Department of Parks, Recreation and Tourism and transferred to it 
shall ensure that funds made available to film projects through the South Carolina 
Film Commission are budgeted and spent so as to further the following 
objectives: 
 
   (a) stimulation of economic activity to develop the potentialities of the 
State by recruiting and facilitating motion picture production and recruiting 
motion picture production and support companies and facilities that further the 
objectives of the division’s programs and standards; 
 

Page 38 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

 
   (b) conservation, restoration, and development of the natural and 
physical, the human and social, and the economic and productive resources of 
the State taking steps necessary to foster the economic and cultural development 
of the indigenous motion picture industry; 
 
   (c) promotion of a system of transportation for the State, through 
development and expansion of the highway, railroad, port, waterway, and airport 
systems receiving and disbursing funds which may become available by the 
federal government for programs related to motion picture production and 
related activities; 
 
   (d) promotion and correlation of state and local activity in planning public 
works projects;  
 
   (e)(d) promotion of public interest in the development of the State 
through cooperation with public agencies, private enterprises, and charitable and 
social institutions by entering contracts within the amount made available by 
appropriation, with individuals, organizations, and institutions for services 
furthering the objectives of the division’s programs, and with local and regional 
associations for cooperative endeavors furthering the objectives of the division’s 
programs; 
 
   (f) encouragement of industrial development, private business, 
commercial enterprise, agricultural production, transportation, and the utilization 
and investment of capital within the State; 
 
   (g) assistance in the development of existing state and interstate trade, 
commerce, and markets for South Carolina goods and in the removal of barriers 
to the industrial, commercial, and agricultural development of the State; 
 
   (h)(e) assistance in ensuring stability in employment, increasing the 
opportunities for employment of the citizens of the State, devising ways and 
means to raise the living standards of the people of the State in accordance with 
the objectives of the division’s programs and standards; 
 
   (i)(f) enhancement of the general welfare of the people;  and 
 
   (j)(g) encouragement and consideration as appropriate so as to consider 
race, gender, and other demographic factors to ensure nondiscrimination, 
inclusion, and representation of all segments of the State to the greatest extent 
possible. 
 
HISTORY:  1993 Act No. 181, Section 1;  1999 Act No. 100, Part II, Section 71;  
2008 Act No. 313, Section 6.B, eff upon approval (became law without the 
Governor's signature on June 12, 2008);  2008 Act No. 359, Section 2, eff July 1, 
2008. 
 

Page 39 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Presented and 
Approved by 
Board/Commission 

Has not been presented to Governor’s Office 

Other Agencies 
Potentially 
Impacted 

None 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 40 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

APPENDICES 
 
 
  

Page 41 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Appendix A.  Analysis of S.C.’s Film Incentives (December 2011) 
 
  

Page 42 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 43 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 44 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 45 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 46 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 47 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 48 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 49 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 50 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 51 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 52 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 53 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 54 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 55 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 56 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 57 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 58 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 59 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 60 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 61 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 62 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 63 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 64 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 65 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 66 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 67 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 68 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 69 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 70 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 71 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 72 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 73 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 74 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 75 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Appendix B-1.  Film Project Summary Report (Calendar Year 2007 - 2011) 
 

Page 76 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Project Summary Report

01/01/2007 - 12/31/2011Production Start Date:

All Productions SC Film Commission

                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

Feature Film

5/13/2007 Gospel Hill $503,168 100 1428$2,254,316.21 $0.00 410 4670 York

Chester

6/15/2007 Goodbye Victoria $0 50 0$0.00 $1,100.00 0 00 Charleston

2/20/2008 The New Daughter $1,155,621 100 3459$6,280,315.16 $0.00 392 4810 Charleston

4/14/2008 Nailed $1,178,645 100 9987$13,113,036.50 $0.00 117 26943 Richland

Lexington

7/1/2008 The Hills Have Thighs: An 
Appalachian Comedy

$0 90 10$0.00 $50,000.00 22 227 Pickens

Richland

10/13/2008 Dear John $2,436,140 100 4780$7,060,341.00 $0.00 965 114246 Charleston

Berkeley

12/7/2008 George A. Romero Presents: 
Deadtime Stories I

$0 70 200$0.00 $85,000.00 4 1612 Beaufort

2/22/2009 Third on a Match $0 100 2$0.00 $10,000.00 20 2040 Greenwood

Abbeville

10/12/2009 The Afflicted $0 100 20$0.00 $490,000.00 50 5321 Greenville

Spartanburg

Charleston

10/21/2009 Angel Camouflaged $429,926 100 383$1,246,203.95 $0.00 504 57121 Charleston

5/24/2010 Little Red Wagon $765,592 100 1941$2,064,789.06 $0.00 878 93027 Charleston

7/19/2010 The Wise Kids $0 98 0$0.00 $35,000.00 39 6724 Charleston

9/12/2010 The Bay $283,864 100 2365$1,279,279.00 $0.00 426 49518 Georgetown

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 1 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 77 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

5/11/2011 Crackerjack (portion) $0 3 25$0.00 $5,000.00 4 41 Florence

$6,752,956 $676,100 24600$33,298,281 260 3831 4537Feature FilmTotals:

Project Count: 14

MOW's/Cable Movies/TV Series/Pilots

2/1/2007 Reinventing the Wheelers (Pilot) $714,468 100 2037$3,028,184.75 $0.00 353 44614 Charleston

2/20/2007 Army Wives - Season 1 $2,436,231 100 14219$10,764,380.04 $0.00 1087 139384 Charleston

Georgetown

Bamberg

Berkeley

Newberry

3/19/2008 Army Wives - Season 2 $6,968,194 100 24744$29,528,916.28 $0.00 2011 2011133 Charleston

12/18/2008 MTV: Making The Band - Season 
4

$0 2 10$0.00 $5,000.00 14 163 Greenville

1/7/2009 The Real Estate Pros - Season 2 $0 100 120$0.00 $1,500,000.00 3 1490 Charleston

2/3/2009 Army Wives - Season 3 $6,498,044 100 19389$15,798,030.30 $0.00 1374 1770126 Charleston

Berkeley

5/9/2009 King of the Crown  (Pilot) $0 100 30$0.00 $120,000.00 2 105 Richland

Lexington

7/15/2009 King of the Crown - Season 1 $0 95 90$0.00 $300,000.00 5 2058 Richland

Charleston

8/10/2009 Southern Fried Stings - Pilot 
(truTV)

$0 100 18$0.00 $50,000.00 17 2710 Spartanburg

1/6/2010 Southern Fried Stings - Season 1 $0 100 94$0.00 $272,000.00 2 1821 Spartanburg

1/13/2010 Army Wives - Season 4 $5,695,567 100 20014$16,792,183.00 $0.00 1731 1927131 Charleston

3/22/2010 American Pickers (History 
Channel)

$0 50 0$0.00 $5,000.00 0 00 Lexington

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 2 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 78 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

7/26/2010 Southern Fried Stings - Season 2 $0 100 94$0.00 $272,000.00 17 3327 Spartanburg

10/5/2010 The Lost Valentine (2nd unit) $0 1 3$0.00 $1,000.00 0 00 Charleston

10/18/2010 Test Drive: Corvette  ZR1 $0 0 0$0.00 $20,000.00 0 00 Kershaw

1/10/2011 Army Wives - Season 5 $5,042,464 100 2104$11,959,976.95 $0.00 1348 158291 Charleston

3/10/2011 All Worked Up - Season 4 (truTV) $0 40 20$0.00 $8,000.00 7 95 Charleston

5/23/2011 Scammed $0 100 1200$0.00 $250,000.00 8 380 Charleston

7/11/2011 Eastbound & Down (portion) $0 25 180$0.00 $122,000.00 2025 21102 Horry

$27,354,967 $2,925,000 84366$87,871,671 800 10004 11424MOW's/Cable Movies/TV 
Series/Pilots

Totals:

Project Count:
19

Other (Student, Docs.)

1/11/2007 Leverage $0 100 0$0.00 $3,000.00 0 00 Greenville

3/1/2007 True Aim- Drayton Hall 
Documentary

$0 100 0$0.00 $9,600.00 7 70 Charleston

5/16/2008 The Witch of Portobello $0 100 0$0.00 $75,000.00 110 1104 Charleston

5/28/2008 Stand Alone $0 100 0$0.00 $450.00 0 00 Charleston

7/22/2008 Roses Are Dead $0 100 2$0.00 $10,000.00 0 04 Anderson

9/4/2008 Appalachian Dreams $0 100 0$0.00 $75,000.00 0 048 Pickens

9/12/2008 Dog Days $0 100 0$0.00 $1,000.00 48 488 Richland

10/15/2008 A Very Cold Day $0 100 0$0.00 $1,000.00 0 02 Jasper

1/10/2009 Palmetto Haunting $0 100 0$0.00 $8,500.00 12 1214 Chester

York

3/3/2009 Liberating Jesse $45,000 100 1$0.00 $0.00 51 5116 Charleston

Berkeley

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 3 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 79 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

6/15/2009 Eight Graves $0 100 0$0.00 $3,000.00 17 1721 Charleston

Georgetown

Horry

6/15/2009 Antigone $0 100 15$0.00 $12,000.00 50 5025 Anderson

Greenville

7/2/2009 My America $0 5 20$0.00 $7,000.00 0 45 Greenwood

8/26/2009 John Henry McCray $0 30 0$0.00 $1,000.00 0 02 Richland

Charleston

12/7/2009 History of Civilization $0 10 12$0.00 $5,000.00 0 35 Charleston

3/3/2010 The Last Mountain $0 0 0$0.00 $2,000.00 0 01 Charleston

11/4/2010 Civil War: Back to Life $0 8 15$0.00 $2,600.00 1 62 Charleston

12/12/2010 Home (Pilot) $0 100 30$0.00 $10,000.00 10 2714 York

7/21/2011 Cold Blood $0 50 18$0.00 $5,000.00 3 65 Aiken

$45,000 $231,150 113$0 176 309 341Other (Student, Docs.)Totals:

Project Count: 19

Print Ads & Catalogs

1/1/2007 Belk - Spring '07 $0 100 0$0.00 $6,600.00 5 50 Charleston

2/1/2007 Lands End - Winter '07 $0 100 0$0.00 $15,000.00 10 100 Clarendon

2/2/2007 Jenny K $0 100 0$0.00 $39,600.00 12 120 Charleston

3/1/2007 Appleseed's - Spring '07 (part 1) $0 100 0$0.00 $44,550.00 3 30 Charleston

Beaufort

3/1/2007 SCDOT $0 100 0$0.00 $9,900.00 3 30 Charleston

4/1/2007 Hanes - Spring '07 $0 100 0$0.00 $34,650.00 5 50 Charleston

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 4 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 80 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

4/1/2007 LPGA Ad $0 100 0$0.00 $3,300.00 8 80 Charleston

4/1/2007 Willow Ridge $0 100 0$0.00 $247,500.00 12 120 Charleston

5/1/2007 World Publications $0 75 0$0.00 $14,850.00 10 100 Charleston

5/1/2007 Appleseed's - Spring '07 (part 2) $0 100 0$0.00 $3,960.00 4 40 Charleston

5/14/2007 Jessica London $0 100 0$0.00 $44,550.00 5 50 Charleston

6/1/2007 Stein Mart $0 100 0$0.00 $2,640.00 7 70 Charleston

6/6/2007 Maxim Magazine $0 100 0$0.00 $10,000.00 0 00 Beaufort

7/1/2007 Dodge Trucks $0 100 0$0.00 $16,000.00 3 30 Horry

9/1/2007 Redcats USA $0 100 0$0.00 $100,000.00 11 110 Charleston

10/1/2007 Bank of America - '07 $0 100 0$0.00 $3,750.00 3 30 Charleston

10/1/2007 Chadwicks - Redcats $0 100 0$0.00 $80,000.00 4 40 Charleston

10/1/2007 Lorel $0 100 0$0.00 $36,000.00 12 120 Charleston

10/9/2007 American Girl - '07 $0 100 0$0.00 $56,000.00 3 30 Beaufort

10/13/2007 YES Essentials (Milliken) $0 100 0$0.00 $24,000.00 12 120 Charleston

10/24/2007 Teen Vogue - Fall '07 $0 100 0$0.00 $30,000.00 11 110 Charleston

10/24/2007 Eileen Fisher Clothing $0 10 0$0.00 $56,000.00 5 50 Beaufort

10/30/2007 Bedford Fair - '07 $0 100 0$0.00 $40,000.00 14 140 Charleston

3/11/2008 Bedford Fair - '08 $0 100 0$0.00 $40,000.00 8 80 Charleston

3/23/2008 Brownstone - '08 $0 100 35$0.00 $50,000.00 3 85 Charleston

4/9/2008 Talbots - '08 $0 100 56$0.00 $75,000.00 9 197 Charleston

5/15/2008 Garden Furniture $0 5 0$0.00 $10,000.00 2 20 Charleston

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 5 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 81 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

5/16/2008 Outer Banks - '08 $0 100 0$0.00 $20,000.00 8 123 Charleston

5/18/2008 Lowe's - Spring '08 $0 100 0$0.00 $30,000.00 12 206 Charleston

5/19/2008 Gloster Catalogue $0 100 0$0.00 $0.00 10 165 Charleston

5/21/2008 British Outdoor Furniture $0 100 30$0.00 $10,000.00 3 84 Charleston

6/15/2008 Essence Magazine - December 
issue

$0 100 40$0.00 $25,000.00 10 501 Charleston

6/15/2008 Essence $0 100 0$0.00 $20,000.00 4 111 Charleston

6/18/2008 Marie Claire $0 100 0$0.00 $20,000.00 3 30 Charleston

6/22/2008 Darius Rucker Album Cover $0 100 0$0.00 $16,000.00 2 20 Charleston

6/24/2008 Casual Retreat $0 40 16$0.00 $3,000.00 0 43 Charleston

7/20/2008 Home Depot - Summer '08 $0 100 0$0.00 $56,000.00 14 267 Charleston

7/23/2008 Drink Small – Music Maker Series $0 100 0$0.00 $500.00 2 20 Richland

8/25/2008 Cape Fear Valley Hospital $0 100 0$0.00 $22,000.00 6 62 Richland

11/5/2008 Casual Male XL Catalogue - 
Spring '09

$0 100 156$0.00 $52,000.00 8 2110 Charleston

11/11/2008 Ralph Lauren Rugby Spring 09 $0 100 50$0.00 $50,000.00 20 601 Charleston

12/18/2008 Shelter Logic $0 100 12$0.00 $15,000.00 11 132 Richland

Lexington

3/17/2009 Champion Sportswear $0 100 20$0.00 $62,500.00 5 74 Charleston

4/15/2009 Bedford Fair - '09 $0 100 54$0.00 $40,000.00 8 113 Charleston

4/27/2009 Alloy Catalogue $0 100 70$0.00 $45,000.00 3 135 Charleston

5/6/2009 Appleseed's - Spring '09 $0 100 130$0.00 $70,000.00 7 1010 Charleston

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 6 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 82 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

5/11/2009 Tommy Bahama $0 100 42$0.00 $12,000.00 0 66 Charleston

6/10/2009 Gloster Furniture Ad - 09 $0 100 20$0.00 $25,000.00 8 103 Charleston

7/8/2009 Maxum & Bayliner Boats $0 100 0$0.00 $45,500.00 12 1512 Charleston

9/15/2009 Bedford Fair - Winter '09 $0 100 84$0.00 $10,000.00 4 124 Charleston

12/1/2009 Ann Taylor - Summer Marketing 
shoot

$0 100 24$0.00 $30,000.00 8 202 Charleston

1/19/2010 Bed Linen $0 100 60$0.00 $35,000.00 9 212 Charleston

1/31/2010 Springmaid Linen $0 0 50$0.00 $40,000.00 10 192 Charleston

3/24/2010 Appleseed's - Spring '10 (part 1) $0 100 132$0.00 $40,000.00 3 129 Charleston

4/29/2010 Chadwicks - Spring 2010 $0 100 144$0.00 $75,000.00 7 1512 Charleston

5/1/2010 J. Jill - Spring '10 (part 1) $0 100 96$0.00 $40,000.00 5 147 Charleston

5/2/2010 Appleseed's - Spring '10 (part 2) $0 100 140$0.00 $40,000.00 3 120 Charleston

5/5/2010 Chadwick's Fall 2010 $0 100 125$0.00 $75,000.00 4 79 Charleston

5/9/2010 James Otto $0 100 0$0.00 $10,000.00 0 00 Charleston

5/10/2010 Telescope Outdoor Furniture $0 100 21$0.00 $6,000.00 0 70 Beaufort

5/12/2010 Lexington Furniture - '10 $0 80 49$0.00 $20,000.00 3 116 Charleston

5/22/2010 J. Jill - Spring '10 (part 2) $0 100 104$0.00 $40,000.00 6 257 Charleston

7/5/2010 Darius Rucker: Charleston, 1966 $0 100 0$0.00 $20,000.00 2 71 Charleston

7/13/2010 Queen of Hearts $0 80 15$0.00 $2,000.00 3 30 Charleston

9/1/2010 Hilton Honors Program $0 100 0$0.00 $30,000.00 4 142 Charleston

10/11/2010 Seventh Avenue $0 100 64$0.00 $40,000.00 9 145 Charleston

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 7 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 83 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

12/8/2010 Mercedes-Benz: Sprinter $0 100 170$0.00 $200,000.00 69 7910 Charleston

1/5/2011 Micromass Communications - 
Release

$0 100 38$0.00 $30,000.00 6 133 Charleston

3/15/2011 Appleseed's - Spring '11 $0 100 80$0.00 $30,000.00 3 210 Charleston

8/11/2011 Cyber Swim $0 100 112$0.00 $35,000.00 3 188 Charleston

9/13/2011 Sperry Top-Sider - Spring 2012 $0 0 134$0.00 $120,000.00 23 463 Charleston

10/1/2011 American Eagle - Aerie $0 100 225$0.00 $70,000.00 12 484 Georgetown

10/17/2011 Florsheim $0 100 56$0.00 $100,000.00 18 265 Charleston

10/28/2011 Casual Male XL- Fall 2011 $0 100 112$0.00 $30,000.00 6 207 Charleston

11/15/2011 Teen Vogue - Fall '11 $0 100 54$0.00 $45,000.00 2 203 Charleston

$0 $2,946,350 2820$0 211 562 1029Print Ads & CatalogsTotals:

Project Count: 75

Training/Industrials

2/1/2007 Upcountry History Museum $0 100 0$0.00 $2,000.00 3 30 Greenville

8/6/2007 US Customs $0 100 0$0.00 $24,750.00 8 80 Charleston

12/3/2007 The Truth About Liars $0 100 0$0.00 $1,000.00 1 10 Richland

2/1/2008 Air Force Promo $0 15 0$0.00 $6,600.00 1 10 Sumter

3/10/2008 BMW - Competitive Forum $0 100 50$0.00 $23,024.00 16 265 Spartanburg

5/3/2008 Michelin Tires $0 100 0$0.00 $16,500.00 18 180 Laurens

6/16/2008 Myrtle Beach Chamber Promo $0 100 0$0.00 $10,000.00 2 206 Horry

9/2/2008 BMW - Advance Diesel Roadtrip $0 100 5$0.00 $18,906.00 13 205 Spartanburg

9/28/2008 BMW - MINI Competitive Forum $0 100 5$0.00 $20,109.00 12 195 Spartanburg

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 8 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 84 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

12/15/2008 Colonial Life - Web Campaign $0 100 6$0.00 $80,000.00 25 278 Newberry

Richland

3/25/2009 Visual Artistry $0 100 4$0.00 $6,000.00 2 43 Charleston

4/3/2009 Ninety Six $0 40 18$0.00 $12,000.00 4 103 Greenwood

12/2/2009 Schneider National $0 6 0$0.00 $1,500.00 5 81 Jasper

9/10/2010 Nutrisystem $0 100 12$0.00 $1,800.00 3 72 Charleston

4/4/2011 Proactiv Web $0 100 8$0.00 $20,000.00 16 201 Charleston

$0 $244,189 108$0 39 129 192Training/IndustrialsTotals:

Project Count: 15

TV Commercials

1/1/2007 CBIZ Insurance $0 100 0$0.00 $11,550.00 9 90 Charleston

2/1/2007 Army Wives Gives Back $0 40 20$0.00 $75,000.00 10 602 Charleston

3/1/2007 Nikon "Picture Town" $0 100 0$0.00 $44,550.00 8 80 Georgetown

3/1/2007 Palmetto Pride PSA spots $0 100 0$0.00 $30,000.00 5 50 Richland

3/1/2007 Veet $0 100 0$0.00 $59,400.00 40 400 Charleston

3/1/2007 All Fall Down (EPK) $0 20 0$0.00 $13,200.00 3 30 Charleston

3/1/2007 DIY $0 100 0$0.00 $74,250.00 17 170 Beaufort

3/1/2007 German Travel Channel $0 75 0$0.00 $9,900.00 3 30 Charleston

3/1/2007 Canadian Soccer Team/Bank of 
Montreal

$0 100 0$0.00 $57,750.00 60 600 Charleston

3/1/2007 Medical Product $0 100 0$0.00 $14,850.00 8 80 Charleston

3/2/2007 BMW $0 90 0$0.00 $333,000.00 18 180 Greenville

4/1/2007 Reverie Condos $0 100 0$0.00 $8,250.00 8 80 Charleston

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 9 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 85 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

4/17/2007 SC Dept. of Agriculture - '07 $0 100 0$0.00 $15,000.00 7 70 Richland

5/10/2007 Quicken Loans $0 100 0$0.00 $26,400.00 10 100 Charleston

8/1/2007 Chevrolet $0 100 0$0.00 $247,500.00 35 350 Chester

8/1/2007 Pandemic $0 100 0$0.00 $49,500.00 20 200 Richland

8/17/2007 National Highway, Safety Admin $0 100 0$0.00 $8,250.00 6 60 Charleston

10/1/2007 MUSC Commercial $0 100 0$0.00 $13,200.00 30 300 Charleston

12/8/2007 BMW - Running Footage $0 60 0$0.00 $24,750.00 2 23 Greenville

1/25/2008 GMC "Bridge" $0 100 0$0.00 $115,500.00 45 450 Charleston

3/10/2008 BOSE - True to Life $0 100 0$0.00 $42,900.00 19 383 Charleston

3/14/2008 Citgo (4 spots) $0 100 400$0.00 $1,190,000.00 49 707 Dorchester

Newberry

5/30/2008 Ford / Susan G Komen 
Foundation "Warriors in Pink"

$0 15 0$0.00 $32,800.00 30 300 Charleston

9/26/2008 Ketner for Congress $0 100 9$0.00 $15,000.00 7 101 Charleston

10/11/2008 Taste of Charleston $0 100 6$0.00 $5,000.00 3 62 Charleston

10/26/2008 Jeffcoat Attorney Ad $0 100 2$0.00 $12,000.00 8 91 Lexington

12/12/2008 Futuristic Films Commercial $0 100 6$0.00 $10,000.00 0 01 Greenville

12/16/2008 Toyota Venza $0 100 45$0.00 $125,000.00 20 233 Charleston

3/30/2009 Carolina First Bank "Open" $0 100 0$0.00 $70,000.00 11 182 Charleston

Greenville

4/21/2009 Bone Mineral Density $0 100 2$0.00 $12,000.00 8 101 Georgetown

5/20/2009 Roper Hospital - "Love Hurts" $0 100 10$0.00 $35,000.00 13 150 Charleston

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 10 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 86 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

6/14/2009 Marines $0 100 200$0.00 $401,016.00 36 584 Beaufort

Calhoun

7/30/2009 SC Dept. of Agriculture - '09 $0 100 42$0.00 $80,000.00 43 492 Charleston

Orangeburg

8/25/2009 Honda "Chains" $0 40 30$0.00 $175,000.00 53 581 Charleston

Berkeley

11/5/2009 SCPRT - Made for Vacation (& 
Golf)

$0 100 210$0.00 $450,000.00 25 3110 Beaufort

Charleston

Horry

Richland

Lexington

Greenville

Anderson

Spartanburg

1/14/2010 Kobalt Tools (Web) $0 30 26$0.00 $20,000.00 7 461 Chester

1/15/2010 Joe Wilson for Congress $0 100 0$0.00 $10,000.00 2 61 Richland

4/7/2010 Eleanor Kitzman for Lt. Governor $0 0 0$0.00 $28,000.00 10 130 Richland

4/26/2010 Crestor - '10 $0 0 0$0.00 $60,000.00 7 170 Georgetown

6/14/2010 MUSC - '10 $0 100 19$0.00 $125,000.00 27 397 Charleston

6/23/2010 BMW - Rewind (2 spots) $0 100 130$0.00 $185,000.00 33 783 Richland

Spartanburg

Greenville

6/23/2010 US Cellular $0 0 0$0.00 $75,000.00 0 00 Charleston

7/13/2010 Charter Communications $0 100 0$0.00 $20,000.00 2 60 Greenville

7/15/2010 Gander Mountain $0 100 0$0.00 $10,000.00 0 00 York

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 11 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 87 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

8/23/2010 Celebrex $0 0 60$0.00 $50,000.00 0 00 Georgetown

9/9/2010 Best Western $0 0 20$0.00 $20,000.00 5 150 Greenville

10/5/2010 Bluegreen - Myrtle Beach $0 100 9$0.00 $15,000.00 8 136 Horry

10/18/2010 Corvette Test Drive $0 100 40$0.00 $35,000.00 0 00 Lancaster

11/22/2010 Bi-Lo (2010) $0 0 15$0.00 $20,000.00 5 50 Greenville

2/3/2011 First Federal $0 100 26$0.00 $70,000.00 44 522 Charleston

5/18/2011 Bi-Lo (2011) $0 100 65$0.00 $20,000.00 21 652 Greenville

9/5/2011 Army of One - '11 $0 0 30$0.00 $50,000.00 13 235 Richland

10/10/2011 Army Wives - Promo for Season 
6

$0 100 20$0.00 $101,000.00 49 671 Charleston

10/10/2011 Belk - Fall '11 $0 100 35$0.00 $250,000.00 8 310 Charleston

10/14/2011 Pharmaceutical Product $0 100 36$0.00 $35,000.00 18 222 Charleston

10/31/2011 Lincoln Financial $0 100 35$0.00 $100,000.00 50 555 Charleston

$0 $5,186,516 1548$0 78 978 1372TV CommercialsTotals:

Project Count: 56

TV Episodes/Music Videos

1/1/2007 Retirement Living TV $0 100 0$0.00 $4,558.00 3 30 Charleston

1/1/2007 Wheel of Fortune $0 100 0$0.00 $2,000,000.00 250 2500 Charleston

1/1/2007 House Hunters - '07 $0 100 0$0.00 $41,250.00 5 50 Horry

1/1/2007 Wheel of Fortune (B Roll) $0 100 0$0.00 $8,250.00 4 40 Charleston

1/1/2007 Extreme Makeover $0 100 0$0.00 $82,500.00 45 450 Horry

2/1/2007 Flip This House $0 100 0$0.00 $49,500.00 7 70 Richland

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 12 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 88 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

2/1/2007 I Want That $0 100 0$0.00 $23,000.00 3 30 Charleston

2/1/2007 America's Most Wanted - '07 
(Fox)

$0 100 0$0.00 $7,408.00 2 20 Florence

2/12/2007 Bunco $0 100 0$0.00 $2,000.00 4 40 Richland

3/14/2007 Anthony Bourdain: No 
Reservations

$0 100 0$0.00 $16,500.00 2 27 Charleston

4/1/2007 Painless Production- Animal 
Planet

$0 100 0$0.00 $49,015.00 11 110 Charleston

4/1/2007 Family Circle Tennis $0 100 0$0.00 $115,500.00 100 1000 Charleston

4/1/2007 Democratic Debates $0 100 0$0.00 $165,000.00 37 370 Orangeburg

5/1/2007 Digging for the Truth: Episode 43 $0 100 0$0.00 $44,550.00 1 10 Charleston

5/5/2007 Wives on the Homefront $0 100 0$0.00 $30,000.00 25 250 Charleston

6/2/2007 LPGA Tour $0 100 0$0.00 $148,500.00 35 350 Charleston

7/18/2007 CBS Early Show $0 100 0$0.00 $100,000.00 7 70 Charleston

8/16/2007 American Idol - Season 7 / 
Episode 4 (Fox)

$0 10 160$0.00 $135,000.00 50 703 Charleston

8/25/2007 CNBC $0 100 0$0.00 $7,260.00 3 30 Charleston

9/1/2007 Sugarland Express $0 100 0$0.00 $24,750.00 28 280 Charleston

9/1/2007 Pirates $0 100 0$0.00 $3,960.00 4 40 Charleston

9/13/2007 Battle of Saipan $0 100 0$0.00 $34,650.00 10 100 Charleston

10/1/2007 Political Capitol - Bloomberg 
McCain Interview

$0 100 0$0.00 $15,000.00 1 10 Charleston

10/4/2007 Political Capitol $0 100 0$0.00 $15,000.00 1 10 Charleston

10/21/2007 Stephen Fry in America $0 10 0$0.00 $300.00 1 12 Beaufort

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 13 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 89 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

11/1/2007 HGTV: Green Home 2008 $0 100 0$0.00 $130,000.00 120 1200 Beaufort

11/9/2007 HGTV: If Walls Could Talk $0 100 0$0.00 $5,000.00 0 00 Beaufort

1/1/2008 Democratic Presidential Debate $0 100 0$0.00 $330,000.00 50 500 Horry

1/1/2008 The Colbert Report $0 100 0$0.00 $16,500.00 4 40 Charleston

1/1/2008 Republican Presidential Debate $0 100 0$0.00 $24,750.00 50 500 Horry

1/29/2008 For Love of Money: The Seale 
Kidnapping

$0 100 0$0.00 $1,000.00 2 20 Beaufort

3/15/2008 Throwdown with Bobby Flay $0 60 27$0.00 $18,000.00 10 193 Charleston

4/12/2008 The Amazing Race - Spring '08 $0 5 6$0.00 $1,000.00 0 30 Richland

5/1/2008 Last Comic Standing $0 5 0$0.00 $8,250.00 4 40 Richland

5/6/2008 The Biggest Looser - Season 6 $0 10 0$0.00 $5,000.00 3 30 Greenville

8/12/2008 Golf With Style $0 100 36$0.00 $10,000.00 2 83 Beaufort

8/15/2008 School Of Golf - Hilton Head 
(Golf Channel)

$0 85 150$0.00 $200,000.00 2 830 Beaufort

9/23/2008 The Biggest Loser - Season 7 $0 5 3$0.00 $5,000.00 1 71 Horry

10/4/2008 Pachino Dino Music Video $0 100 3$0.00 $10,000.00 15 160 Richland

10/16/2008 The Amazing Race - Fall '08 $0 5 6$0.00 $1,000.00 0 30 Richland

12/2/2008 Aerial America $0 2 6$0.00 $2,000.00 0 33 Charleston

Richland

Sumter

Greenville

12/18/2008 Exotical Pants $0 100 2$0.00 $36,000.00 12 120 Richland

3/30/2009 History Detectives - "Columbia 
Bridge"

$0 100 10$0.00 $25,000.00 0 05 Richland

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 14 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 90 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

4/7/2009 Horse Master with Julie 
Goodnight (RFD-TV)

$0 15 12$0.00 $3,600.00 0 43 Beaufort

4/15/2009 Deadly Women: Mothers Who 
Kill

$0 1 3$0.00 $300.00 2 51 Union

5/7/2009 Caravallo's Journey (PBS) $0 100 0$0.00 $20,000.00 0 02 Charleston

7/6/2009 I Shouldn't Be Alive III $0 20 15$0.00 $10,000.00 0 02 Charleston

7/16/2009 Hunley (National Geographic) $0 99 23$0.00 $60,000.00 8 1320 Charleston

7/19/2009 Rob Drydeck's Fantasy Factory $0 10 85$0.00 $20,000.00 0 175 Horry

8/18/2009 Around the World in 80 Days $0 25 15$0.00 $2,500.00 6 161 Lee

9/1/2009 Donnavventura (Rete 4 - Italy) $0 10 8$0.00 $2,000.00 0 21 Charleston

9/7/2009 Supernanny (ABC) $0 100 323$0.00 $80,000.00 5 2421 Florence

9/10/2009 The Hunley (National 
Geographic TV)

$0 100 23$0.00 $45,000.00 8 1320 Charleston

9/14/2009 God in America $0 15 12$0.00 $5,000.00 0 00 Charleston

York

10/9/2009 uCook! With Chef Bob $0 100 0$0.00 $50,000.00 13 134 Charleston

10/25/2009 Destination Golf - South Carolina $0 100 20$0.00 $20,000.00 2 56 Charleston

Horry

Beaufort

11/16/2009 Dispatches (Channel 4, UK) $0 5 2$0.00 $2,000.00 1 22 Richland

York

2/23/2010 Women Behind Bars - Season 2 
(WEtv)

$0 5 3$0.00 $1,000.00 0 30 Spartanburg

3/15/2010 Animal Planet $0 50 20$0.00 $20,000.00 8 113 Charleston

3/18/2010 ACC Football promo $0 100 4$0.00 $10,000.00 0 00 Oconee

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 15 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 91 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

3/21/2010 NFL Draft: 2010 $0 10 6$0.00 $2,000.00 1 42 Pickens

Greenville

4/6/2010 Discovery Health: Mystery 
Diagnosis

$0 50 4$0.00 $10,000.00 2 54 Sumter

5/12/2010 I'm Heavy $0 100 0$0.00 $354,705.00 0 00 Beaufort

5/15/2010 50 Cent: The Origin of Me $0 20 6$0.00 $50,000.00 2 62 Edgefield

5/15/2010 Charleston Riverdogs / ESPN $0 100 10$0.00 $20,000.00 0 00 Charleston

5/28/2010 Tainted Love $0 75 5$0.00 $6,000.00 5 93 Cherokee

7/1/2010 Jersey Shore - Episode 1 "Going 
South"

$0 5 12$0.00 $4,000.00 0 00 Dillon

7/3/2010 Hollywood Cycles (TruTV) $0 100 22$0.00 $6,500.00 4 93 Aiken

7/15/2010 Teen Mom $0 5 6$0.00 $2,000.00 2 20 Horry

9/20/2010 Who Do You Think You Are? $0 10 10$0.00 $6,000.00 0 51 Charleston

9/23/2010 The Biggest Looser - Where are 
They Now?

$0 25 12$0.00 $70,000.00 2 20 Greenville

Horry

10/14/2010 HGTV: "My First Sale" $0 4 0$0.00 $2,000.00 2 514 Spartanburg

2/18/2011 Born to Kill $0 12 10$0.00 $2,000.00 8 104 Charleston

Florence

Richland

2/20/2011 Plum Hollow Farm $0 0 72$0.00 $50,000.00 3 99 Spartanburg

3/7/2011 The Bachelor $0 25 12$0.00 $10,000.00 3 30 Lexington

3/10/2011 You Don't Know Dixie $0 100 150$0.00 $35,000.00 9 1812 Spartanburg

3/15/2011 Coming Home $0 15 133$0.00 $65,000.00 32 4512 Charleston

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 16 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 92 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

4/15/2011 Hulk Hogan's Micro 
Championship Wrestling

$0 25 8$0.00 $5,000.00 2 20 Charleston

4/16/2011 This Morning $0 100 20$0.00 $3,000.00 3 30 Charleston

5/1/2011 The Unsellables 3 (HGTV) $0 40 450$0.00 $33,000.00 11 2326 Charleston

Colleton

5/13/2011 Golf $0 100 20$0.00 $20,000.00 7 121 Horry

5/18/2011 Treasure Chase - Episode 102 
(Discovery)

$0 0 42$0.00 $30,000.00 10 302 Charleston

7/14/2011 Requiem For The Blessed 
Damned

$0 100 3$0.00 $400.00 7 91 Richland

7/14/2011 Your Chance to Die $0 100 1$0.00 $400.00 7 101 Richland

7/20/2011 Crimes of Passion $0 40 6$0.00 $7,000.00 4 70 Horry

7/22/2011 American Idol - Season 11 / 
Epsiode 1 (Fox)

$0 10 130$0.00 $130,000.00 45 655 Charleston

8/25/2011 Hidden Gems $0 100 18$0.00 $110,000.00 14 162 Greenville

8/26/2011 Hairy Bikers $0 8 54$0.00 $10,000.00 25 366 Charleston

Florence

9/15/2011 Sleepin' On Me $0 100 0$0.00 $5,500.00 20 200 Charleston

10/3/2011 Car Lot Cowboy $0 12 265$0.00 $40,000.00 17 366 Anderson

10/15/2011 Ghost Adventures - Season 6 $0 100 56$0.00 $20,000.00 3 145 Charleston

11/4/2011 Stolen Voices, Buried Secrets $0 70 21$0.00 $5,200.00 17 205 Richland

Greenville

11/25/2011 Newlyweds $0 100 50$0.00 $45,000.00 7 303 Richland

12/2/2011 My Versa Road Trip $0 25 6$0.00 $2,000.00 0 80 Greenville

12/6/2011 Park Secrets: Swamp Thing $0 2 2$0.00 $500.00 0 21 Charleston

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 17 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 93 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

12/19/2011 Heavy on a Harley $0 100 16$0.00 $5,000.00 5 83 Richland

Lexington

$0 $5,470,556 2615$0 281 1246 1582TV Episodes/Music VideosTotals:

Project Count: 96
Grand Total $34,152,923 $17,679,861 116170$121,169,952 1845 17059 20477

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 18 of 18

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 94 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Appendix B-2.  Film Project Summary Report (Calendar Year 2012) 
  

Page 95 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Project Summary Report

01/01/2012 - 12/31/2012Production Start Date:

All Productions SC Film Commission

                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

Feature Film

9/17/2012 Southern Comfort $0 82 100$0.00 $80,000.00 15 209 Charleston

10/14/2012 Warrior Road $0 100 325$0.00 $350,000.00 65 8329 Charleston

Horry

$0 $430,000 425$0 38 80 103Feature FilmTotals:

Project Count: 2

MOW's/Cable Movies/TV Series/Pilots

1/7/2012 Army Wives - Season 6 $8,992,810 100 4688$22,698,467.30 $0.00 2290 2833161 Charleston

3/1/2012 Southern Nights (Season 1 / 
CMT)

$0 1 35$0.00 $3,000.00 0 352 Fairfield

Richland

7/23/2012 Banshee - Season 1 (portion) $0 3 300$0.00 $150,000.00 0 03 Richland

8/15/2012 Welcome to Myrtle Manor - 
Season 1

$0 100 2070$0.00 $3,000,000.00 34 5758 Horry

9/15/2012 The African Americans: Many 
Rivers to Cross

$0 20 45$0.00 $50,000.00 5 100 Charleston

Richland

11/6/2012 Homeland - Season 2 (portion) $0 5 120$0.00 $80,000.00 5 651 Charleston

$8,992,810 $3,283,000 7258$22,698,467 225 2334 3000MOW's/Cable Movies/TV 
Series/Pilots

Totals:

Project Count:
6

Other (Student, Docs.)

2/17/2012 The Restless $0 0 18$0.00 $5,000.00 4 263 Darlington

3/15/2012 Crossing the River $0 100 12$0.00 $13,000.00 30 394 Kershaw

Sumter

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 1 of 5

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 96 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

5/23/2012 About Face $0 10 9$0.00 $5,000.00 1 42 Charleston

12/2/2012 Music Documentary $0 5 3$0.00 $2,000.00 0 03 Charleston

$0 $25,000 42$0 12 35 69Other (Student, Docs.)Totals:

Project Count: 4

Print Ads & Catalogs

3/5/2012 Lexington Home Brands - '12 $0 100 48$0.00 $20,000.00 0 85 Charleston

3/13/2012 Woman Within - Spring '12 (Part 
1)

$0 100 85$0.00 $20,000.00 2 204 Charleston

4/2/2012 Woman Within - Spring '12 (Part 
2)

$0 100 90$0.00 $40,000.00 2 208 Charleston

4/11/2012 Distinctive Apparel - Spring '12 $0 100 28$0.00 $40,000.00 4 104 Charleston

4/16/2012 Adcetris $0 100 49$0.00 $25,000.00 6 202 Beaufort

5/14/2012 Trek Bikes: Lifestyle $0 100 72$0.00 $15,000.00 4 134 Charleston

5/31/2012 Woman Within - Summer '12 
(Part 1)

$0 100 100$0.00 $50,000.00 7 195 Charleston

6/11/2012 Belk - WK32 Fall Look Book $0 100 152$0.00 $100,000.00 15 347 Charleston

6/11/2012 Belk - Fall '12 (Look Book) $0 100 200$0.00 $100,000.00 10 370 Charleston

6/11/2012 WK32 Fall Look Book $0 100 24$0.00 $100,000.00 15 266 Charleston

6/18/2012 Lowe's - Summer '12 $0 100 250$0.00 $80,000.00 4 290 Charleston

7/24/2012 Woman Within - Summer '12 
(Part II)

$0 100 90$0.00 $40,000.00 2 195 Charleston

8/24/2012 Woman Within - Summer '12 
(Part III)

$0 100 85$0.00 $55,000.00 2 195 Charleston

9/5/2012 Albion $0 100 33$0.00 $8,000.00 0 00 Charleston

9/27/2012 RedCats USA - Fall '12 part 1 $0 100 70$0.00 $50,000.00 4 207 Charleston

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 2 of 5

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 97 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

10/10/2012 Simponi $0 100 120$0.00 $55,000.00 11 180 Charleston

10/25/2012 Woman Within - Fall '12 $0 100 100$0.00 $45,000.00 5 257 Charleston

11/7/2012 Belk - Fall '12 (Bowl Petals) $0 100 250$0.00 $200,000.00 37 662 Charleston

12/3/2012 Caterpillar $0 90 40$0.00 $40,000.00 13 253 Charleston

$0 $1,083,000 1886$0 74 143 428Print Ads & CatalogsTotals:

Project Count: 19

TV Commercials

2/15/2012 MUSC - '12 $0 100 120$0.00 $70,000.00 15 250 Charleston

6/17/2012 Get Zike $0 100 60$0.00 $42,000.00 25 330 Greenville

12/18/2012 SC Education Lottery - Know the 
Numbers

$0 100 18$0.00 $40,000.00 15 231 Richland

$0 $152,000 198$0 1 55 81TV CommercialsTotals:

Project Count: 3

TV Episodes/Music Videos

1/17/2012 Built to Last $0 25 4$0.00 $1,000.00 6 80 Charleston

1/20/2012 Piers Morgan Tonight $0 100 15$0.00 $15,000.00 1 61 Charleston

2/6/2012 Ghost Hunters - A Serial Killer's 
Revenge

$0 9 24$0.00 $42,000.00 5 142 Charleston

3/4/2012 Southern Fried Fitness $0 25 15$0.00 $5,000.00 0 53 Charleston

3/5/2012 Capella Raise the Bar $0 100 27$0.00 $8,000.00 2 112 Charleston

3/5/2012 Fact or Faked: Paranormal Files $0 100 75$0.00 $10,000.00 3 183 Lee

3/15/2012 P. Watts - Get it Right $0 100 6$0.00 $700.00 8 113 Orangeburg

4/2/2012 Deadly 60 $0 30 18$0.00 $3,000.00 0 62 Charleston

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 3 of 5

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 98 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

4/4/2012 History Detectives - "Bill of Sale" $0 100 12$0.00 $6,000.00 2 63 Marion

Florence

Charleston

4/13/2012 The Devil You Know 
(Investigation Discovery)

$0 15 4$0.00 $3,000.00 3 81 Greenville

5/11/2012 NASCAR - Que Piensan Los 
Hombres

$0 100 7$0.00 $10,000.00 4 111 Darlington

6/1/2012 Teen Mom  -Season 4 (MTV) $0 25 5$0.00 $3,000.00 3 83 Horry

6/4/2012 World’s Weirdest $0 2 9$0.00 $5,000.00 0 31 Charleston

6/6/2012 Billion Dollar Block $0 100 32$0.00 $10,000.00 2 80 Charleston

7/14/2012 Hoarders (A&E) $0 100 78$0.00 $15,000.00 15 255 Greenville

7/17/2012 Shipping Wars (A&E) $0 10 2$0.00 $5,000.00 5 61 Charleston

7/26/2012 Mysteries at the Museum $0 25 12$0.00 $20,000.00 18 214 Florence

Richland

8/1/2012 Untitled Beauty Project $0 100 50$0.00 $35,000.00 7 180 Lexington

Anderson

8/6/2012 Untitled Beauty Show $0 100 30$0.00 $60,000.00 0 00 Lexington

Anderson

9/10/2012 Make Your Mark $0 2 2$0.00 $2,000.00 0 00 Spartanburg

9/13/2012 Outdoors with Joey Mines $0 100 5$0.00 $3,000.00 1 41 Darlington

10/19/2012 Surviving Evil (ep. 3 & 5) $0 60 9$0.00 $5,000.00 6 140 Richland

10/29/2012 Destination Tennis - South 
Carolina

$0 100 72$0.00 $70,000.00 5 215 Charleston

11/1/2012 Picture Frame Project $0 10 72$0.00 $10,000.00 3 212 Richland

York

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 4 of 5

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 99 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



                    
Date

                                                
Project Title

                               
 Total Rebate

% Shot 
in SC

Total 
SC Days

                           
Counties

Hotel 
Nights

Total Spend SC 
Qualified Prods.

Total Spend SC 
Non Qualf Prods.

Total SC 
Hires

Total 
Hires

11/21/2012 All You Can Eat $0 5 6$0.00 $5,000.00 2 51 Greenville

Richland

12/19/2012 House Hunters International - 
'12

$0 50 6$0.00 $1,000.00 2 51 Charleston

12/19/2012 House Hunters - '12 $0 50 6$0.00 $1,000.00 2 51 Charleston

12/26/2012 MTV: Made $0 60 90$0.00 $25,000.00 1 430 Edgefield

$0 $378,700 693$0 76 106 272TV Episodes/Music VideosTotals:

Project Count: 28
Grand Total $8,992,810 $5,351,700 10502$22,698,467 426 2753 3953

Thursday, August 2, 2018 Page 5 of 5

SCPRT provided to House Oversight Committee via email on August 2, 2018 
 

Page 100 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

 
Appendix B-3.  Film Project Summary Report (Calendar Year 2013 - 2017) 

 
  

Page 101 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



A
tta

ch
m

en
t t

o 
S

C
P

R
T'

s 
Ju

ne
 2

7,
 2

01
8 

 
le

tte
r t

o 
th

e 
H

ou
se

 O
ve

rs
ig

ht
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 

Page 102 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



A
tta

ch
m

en
t t

o 
S

C
P

R
T'

s 
Ju

ne
 2

7,
 2

01
8 

 
le

tte
r t

o 
th

e 
H

ou
se

 O
ve

rs
ig

ht
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 

Page 103 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



A
tta

ch
m

en
t t

o 
S

C
P

R
T'

s 
Ju

ne
 2

7,
 2

01
8 

 
le

tte
r t

o 
th

e 
H

ou
se

 O
ve

rs
ig

ht
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 

Page 104 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



A
tta

ch
m

en
t t

o 
S

C
P

R
T'

s 
Ju

ne
 2

7,
 2

01
8 

 
le

tte
r t

o 
th

e 
H

ou
se

 O
ve

rs
ig

ht
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 

Page 105 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



A
tta

ch
m

en
t t

o 
S

C
P

R
T'

s 
Ju

ne
 2

7,
 2

01
8 

 
le

tte
r t

o 
th

e 
H

ou
se

 O
ve

rs
ig

ht
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 

Page 106 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



A
tta

ch
m

en
t t

o 
S

C
P

R
T'

s 
Ju

ne
 2

7,
 2

01
8 

 
le

tte
r t

o 
th

e 
H

ou
se

 O
ve

rs
ig

ht
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 

Page 107 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



A
tta

ch
m

en
t t

o 
S

C
P

R
T'

s 
Ju

ne
 2

7,
 2

01
8 

 
le

tte
r t

o 
th

e 
H

ou
se

 O
ve

rs
ig

ht
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 

Page 108 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



A
tta

ch
m

en
t t

o 
S

C
P

R
T'

s 
Ju

ne
 2

7,
 2

01
8 

 
le

tte
r t

o 
th

e 
H

ou
se

 O
ve

rs
ig

ht
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 

Page 109 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



A
tta

ch
m

en
t t

o 
S

C
P

R
T'

s 
Ju

ne
 2

7,
 2

01
8 

 
le

tte
r t

o 
th

e 
H

ou
se

 O
ve

rs
ig

ht
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 

Page 110 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



A
tta

ch
m

en
t t

o 
S

C
P

R
T'

s 
Ju

ne
 2

7,
 2

01
8 

 
le

tte
r t

o 
th

e 
H

ou
se

 O
ve

rs
ig

ht
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 

Page 111 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



A
tta

ch
m

en
t t

o 
S

C
P

R
T'

s 
Ju

ne
 2

7,
 2

01
8 

 
le

tte
r t

o 
th

e 
H

ou
se

 O
ve

rs
ig

ht
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 

Page 112 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Appendix C.  Film Impact Qualitative and Quantitative Research (January 
2013) 

Page 113 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



South Carolina Department of Parks, 

Recreation & Tourism

South Carolina Film Commission

Film Impact Qualitative and Quantitative Research

January 2013

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 114 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Contents

smari.com2

Section Slide #

Executive Summary

Background

Objectives

Methodology

Qualitative Findings

Quantitative Findings

Key Findings

Appendix – Questionnaire

Appendix – South Carolina Productions

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 115 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Executive Summary

smari.com3

 SCPRT and The South Carolina Film Commission have partnered with Strategic Marketing & 

Research, Inc. (SMARI) to estimate the impact of a sample of TV shows/movies that were 

filmed and/or set in South Carolina.

 Three increasingly conservative quantitative research efforts and four focus groups conclude 

with certainty that television and film productions influence leisure travel. 

 Measures of “effective recall” and “qualified travel” were developed to assess production 

impact on South Carolina travel. 

 Effective recall means seeing the production and knowing where it was filmed and/or set.

 Qualified travel means that the South Carolina trip was taken after viewing the production and the traveler 

indicates that a TV show or movie was a travel motivator. 

 Those with effective production recall  have a higher level of qualified South Carolina travel 

than those without effective recall. This indicates that incremental travel exists (travel that can 

be attributed to the selected productions).

 The productions that are most likely to influence travel include TV shows about travel or 

food, romance/drama movies or TV shows, and sitcoms.

 The specific production attributes that are most likely to be a major influence on travel 

include coastal scenery, natural scenery, relaxation, historical sites, and iconic 

locations/landmarks. 

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 116 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Background

smari.com4

 South Carolina has been the backdrop for more than 100 feature films and more than 70 TV movies, series, 

and pilots. There are obvious financial benefits associated with the production of television shows and films 

in South Carolina, such as the creation of jobs and economic impact.  In addition to these clearly earmarked 

benefits, there is potential for these films and television shows set or filmed in South Carolina to act as 

promotions that can drive state tourism. 

 The South Carolina Film Commission strives to attract future television and movie productions to film in 

the state by promoting its incredibly diverse geography and availability of eclectic urban settings. The 

commission also uses a variety of financial incentives to encourage production. 

 Strategic Marketing & Research, Inc. (SMARI) has conducted two research studies designed to assess the 

impact of a sample of productions set in and/or filmed in South Carolina on leisure travel to the state. The 

productions included were Dear John, The Patriot, The Notebook, and Army Wives. The initial feasibility study 

conducted in November 2011 illustrated that a measure of incremental travel (influenced travel) could be 

attributed to productions set in South Carolina. The second round of research was an expanded effort that 

included South Carolina Department of Parks, Recreation & Tourism (SCPRT) leisure advertising in order to 

gauge potential synergies created between these productions and traditional marketing efforts. The results 

of the expanded research effort confirmed the prior results. Those who had seen the selected productions 

and could identify them as being set or filmed in South Carolina had a higher rate of travel to the state than 

those who had not seen the productions or did not know that they were set or filmed in South Carolina. 

 SCPRT partnered with SMARI to conduct another round of research to expand on the previous efforts. The 

overall objectives of the new efforts are to refine the production impact measure and to identify what types 

of productions are most impactful so as to proactively recruit productions for filming in South Carolina and 

to link incentives to potential benefits. This research included qualitative and quantitative phases.

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 117 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Objectives

smari.com5

The specific informational objectives of the qualitative and quantitative phases are as follows:

 Qualitative:

 Explore specific aspects of productions that generate interest in travel or actual travel. 

 Develop a set of criteria to test in the quantitative study for their likelihood to influence travel. 

 Quantitative:

 Further refine the measurement of production impact on travel so that SCPRT and the Film Commission are 

confident in communicating impact results. 

 Measure the impact of each production on South Carolina travel.

 Capture South Carolina trip specifics and travel spending to facilitate estimation of economic impact and ROI. 

 Validate the production criteria developed in the qualitative efforts.

 Identify criteria to be used to determine levels of incentives. 

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 118 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Methodology

smari.com6

 Qualitative:

 A total of four focus groups were conducted.  Two were in Boston, Massachusetts, on September 10th, 2012, 

and two were in Memphis, Tennessee, on September 11th, 2012. 

 The groups consisted of 8 to 10 participants who were qualified by being leisure travelers and indicating that a 

film or TV production has had some sort of influence on travel or interest in travel.

 The group discussion focused on uncovering what specific aspects of TV/film productions might prompt 

interest in travel.

 Quantitative:

 An online survey was conducted between October 16th, 2012, and October 20th, 2012, among leisure travelers 

who live east of the Mississippi River.

 A total of 1,576 surveys were completed. 

 Respondents were screened to be leisure travelers and have some responsibility for travel decision-making in 

the household. 

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 119 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Qualitative Findings

smari.com7

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 120 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Qualitative Summary

 The focus group discussions revealed that there is no question that what people see in film and television 

productions has an enormous influence on travel. In many ways films are what builds our mental image of 

what a place is like.  As such it may be fair to say that productions have the strongest influence when we are 

young.  The image library is created early and subsequently expanded and edited.  Thus the impact of 

productions on travel can take years or even decades to be realized. This is most apparent with 

international and exotic destinations. 

 In fact, when we review people’s “bucket lists” of places they have yet to see, more often than not they can 

recall a film that generated their perceptions (or many influences in the case of places like Paris or Hawaii). 

This is a positive finding that links productions to travel, but is also part of the reason that the connection is 

so hard to clearly identify. 

 There are specific connections between film and travel, and sometimes this appears to be to visit a site 

rather than a destination.  The steps of the Philadelphia museum from Rocky, the bench in Savannah from 

Forrest Gump, the Chicago fountain from Married with Children, and the Cleveland house from A Christmas 

Story are all examples of sites that participants indicated visiting while on a trip. 

 This type of direct connection can be seen most concretely with Food Network and Travel Channel 

programs that visit specific restaurants or sites.  Every focus group had significant viewership of these types 

of programs and reported specific visitation.  Similar, but less pervasive relationships were seen with other 

reality shows such as Housewives, Bachelorette, etc. Reality shows seem to hold potential to influence travel 

because they are real, recent, and repeated. 

8 smari.com

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 121 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Qualitative Summary
 The search for the issues that were motivating and the production characteristics that were most impactful 

proved decidedly elusive. Broadly speaking it seems that beauty shots are of key importance – showing the 

beauty of the place and ideally capturing an icon to create a link. Beauty seems to have a link to relaxation, and 

iconic sites are tied to history. 

 These motivating characteristics may be more prevalent in relationship films such as romantic comedies or 

dramas.  Action and crime films seem to be less effective at making the place seem attractive, but this was not 

universally true. Something dark may seem intuitively bad but it can also work. However, it seems that a negative 

portrayal of a place would have more of a negative impact than a positive portrayal would have a positive 

impact.

 The focus groups clearly uncovered the following:

 The place needs to be prominently promoted in the production.

 Iconic imagery and places are critical.

 Beauty shots matter.

 Other connectivity such as celebrity mentions/endorsements do not hurt.

 Beyond these findings the underlying conceptual glue seems tough to pinpoint.  However, the focus groups 

uncovered a much richer trove of reported influencers to test in the quantitative phase. 

 The focus group findings helped to guide the quantitative survey revisions that were put in place to:

 Verify the specific production criteria that are most likely to influence travel.

 Provide a more conservative measure of film impact by assessing when productions were viewed relative to travel and directly asking if a 

film/TV show played a role in selecting South Carolina. 

 Estimate the economic impact of the productions.

 The following is a summary of the quantitative findings.

9 smari.com

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 122 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Quantitative Findings

smari.com10

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 123 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Self-Reported Production Influence

 More than half of leisure travelers report that a production has influenced a vacation destination selection. 

More than one-third indicates visiting a location or site from a movie while on a trip. 

 Travel shows, romance movies, and food shows seem to have the most influence on travel from this 

standpoint. 

11 smari.com

Type of Production
Has influenced 

destination selection

Has influenced 
location/site visit 

while on a trip

TV show about travel 34% 13%

Romance movie 23% 10%

TV show about food 17% 9%

Action movie 13% 8%

Reality TV show 13% 6%

Drama movie 13% 7%

Comedy movie 10% 7%

TV drama 8% 5%

TV sitcom 8% 6%

54%

36%

Destination Selection Visitng a Location/Site while on a Trip

Self-Reported Production Influence

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 124 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Self-Reported Production Influence

 Respondents who indicated that a 

production had influenced their travel 

were asked in an open-ended fashion to 

list the specific production and the 

corresponding vacation destination. 

 First consider the specific productions that 

were mentioned as influencers. 

 Travel and food-related shows came to the 

top, but numerous productions were 

mentioned as vacation destination 

influencers. In fact, the majority were 

mentioned so infrequently that they were 

lumped into the “other” category. 

12 smari.com

Production:
% Saying Production 
Influenced Vacation 

Destination

Travel Channel 7.7%

Hawaii 5-O/Hawaii 3.3%

Disney programs 2.5%

Diners, drive ins and dives 2.1%

Man vs. Food 1.9%

Food Network 1.9%

CSI - Miami, NYC, Las Vegas 1.5%

No Reservations with Anthony Bourdain 1.4%

The Notebook 1.2%

Vegas/Las Vegas 1.1%

Seinfeld 0.9%

Real World 0.9%

Rick Stevens Travel 0.9%

Law & Order 0.7%

Jersey Shore 0.7%

Friends 0.7%

Sleepless in Seattle 0.6%

Midnight in the Garden of Good & Evil 0.6%

Samantha Brown Travels 0.6%

Miami Vice 0.6%

Twilight 0.6%

Survivor 0.6%

Amazing Race 0.6%

Full House 0.6%

Burn Notice 0.6%

Raymond 0.6%

The Hangover 0.6%

House Hunters 0.5%

Keeping Up with the Kardashians 0.5%

Magnum PI 0.5%

Bizarre Foods with Andrew Zimmerman 0.5%

Basketball Wives 0.5%

Blue Hawaii 0.5%

Real Housewives 0.5%

Other/DK/NA 60.3%

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 125 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Self-Reported Production Influence

 When the productions mentioned are coded into 

“types” or “genres,” we see that TV dramas, 

travel/food shows, romances, sitcoms, and reality 

TV are most likely to influence travel. 

13 smari.com

13.5%

0.4%

0.7%

0.7%

0.7%

1.1%

1.6%

1.7%

3.3%

3.6%

4.1%

4.5%

4.8%

6.6%

7.9%

7.9%

10.4%

12.8%

13.5%

DK/Don't recall/NA

Fictional movie

Sports shows

Talk/morning shows

History shows

Horror/thriller movie

Musical movie

Various networks

TV Children/family

Drama movie

Comedy

Action movie

Other

Reality TV show

Romance/Romantic comedy movie

TV sitcom

TV show about food

TV show about travel

TV drama

% Saying Production Influenced 

Vacation Destination

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 126 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Self-Reported Production Influence

 Productions influenced travel to many 

destinations including South Carolina. The 2.5% 

who said that a production influenced South 

Carolina may be understated given this is the 

result of an open-ended exercise.

 Travel Channel, Food Network, Man vs. Food, The 

Notebook, and The Patriot were all mentioned as 

productions that influenced South Carolina travel. 

14 smari.com

Location
% Who Visited Because of a 

Production
NYC/NY 7.1%
Other countries 7.1%
Hawaii Islands 7.0%
Las Vegas 4.5%
Italy (Rome, Venice, Tuscany, etc.) 4.5%
Florida 4.5%
Other 4.3%
Other Southern states/cities 3.9%
Disney World/Disneyland 3.5%
Other North East states/cities 3.1%
California 3.0%
Other Midwest states/cities 2.8%
South Carolina 2.5%
Caribbean 2.5%
Miami 2.2%
Bahamas 2.1%
Mexico (Cancun, Cabo) 2.1%
North Carolina 2.0%
Chicago 1.7%
Savannah, GA 1.4%
San Francisco 1.4%
New Orleans 1.4%
New Jersey 1.4%
Other Southwestern states/cities 1.4%
Seattle 1.3%
Orlando 1.2%
Canada 1.2%
Philadelphia 1.0%
Paris 1.0%
Los Angeles 1.0%
Jamaica 1.0%
Boston 0.9%
Washington 0.9%
Washington, DC 0.8%
Alaska 0.8%
Maine 0.8%
Atlanta 0.8%
Greece 0.7%
Other Northwestern states/cities 0.7%
Ireland 0.5%
Gettysburg 0.5%
NA/DK 7.2%

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 127 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Self-Reported Production Influence

 Those who have visited South Carolina 

in the past 10 years were asked the 

degree to which a list of potential 

influencers motivated their *most 

recent trip. 

 Overall 40% of those surveyed had 

visited South Carolina in the past 10 

years. Of these, 15% indicate that their 

most recent trip was motivated by a 

film or TV show.  So the research 

suggests that productions motivated 

6% (40% x 15%) of these most recent 

South Carolina visits.

 As noted, the open-ended exercise revealed 

that 2.5% of leisure travelers took a South 

Carolina trip that was motivated by a 

production. However, the unaided nature of 

this exercise likely understated the impact. 

 The bottom line is that both unaided and 

aided approaches clearly support that South 

Carolina travel is influenced by movies/TV 

shows. 

15 smari.com

Major Motivator of Most Recent South 
Carolina Trip

%

To get away and relax 60%

To explore new places 40%

A place we routinely visit 30%

Family lives nearby 28%

We’ve been before, don’t routinely visit, 
wanted to get back to

27%

Heard about it from friends or family 27%

To go to an event 25%

Have always wanted to go but never had 
the opportunity

21%

To take advantage of sale/package deal 17%

Is a place you’ve seen on TV or in movies 15%

Saw an article or story 13%

To combine vacation with business trip 12%

Saw an ad 12%

Received an e-mail promotion 9%

40% have visited South 

Carolina in the past 10 years.

15% of these visitors 

indicated that a TV show or 

movie was a major motivation 

for their *most recent South 

Carolina trip.

6% of South Carolina visitors’ 

most recent visits were to 

motivated by a TV show or 

movie.

Self-Reported 

Production Influence

*While some have taken multiple trips to South Carolina in the past 10 

years, this research focuses on the most recent trip. 

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 128 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Motivating Production Criteria

 Scenery is the production attribute that 

is most likely to be identified as a “major 

influence” on travel planning. 

 Relaxation, historical sites, iconic 

locations/landmarks are other top 

influencers.

 Immersion into the story or specific 

scenes is less of a motivator. 

 The relative strength of these 

production attributes could be used to 

determine levels of incentives. 

16 smari.com

18%

19%

24%

25%

28%

28%

29%

29%

34%

35%

37%

41%

42%

44%

44%

47%

52%

55%

Wanted to re-create a specific scene

Feel like part of the story

Actors endorsed place

Led an idealistic lifestyle

Urban or big city setting

Experience night life

Fantasy or mystery

Liked rural/small town setting

Portrayed very romantic

Distinctive architecture

Portrayved very exciting

Restaurants/local food

Captured my imagination

Iconic locations/landmarks

Historical sites

Portrayed very relaxing

Natural scenery

Coastal scenery

Major Influence on Travel Plans

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 129 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Derived Production Influence

17 smari.com

To test a derived model, 

we selected a sample of 

TV/movie productions 

filmed or set in South 

Carolina

In order for someone to be 

influenced to travel by a 

production, they obviously must 

have seen it.  Respondents were 

shown still shots of the 

productions to gauge awareness.

In order for a production to 

influence travel, the traveler needs 

to know where it was set and/or 

filmed. Those who could identify 

set/filming location are considered 

to have  “effective recall.”

South Carolina visitors 

were identified by 

assessing travel to the 

state over the past 10 

years.

In order for someone to have 

been influenced to travel to SC 

by a production they had to have 

seen it prior to taking their most 

recent SC trip.

Finally,  qualified SC travelers had 

to indicated that a TV show/movie 

was a motivator for their most 

recent SC trip. 

Qualified travelers were aware of any of the productions tested, knew the filming/set locale, visited SC in the past 10 years, took their 

most recent SC trip after viewing the production, and indicated that a TV show/movie was a motivation for their most recent SC trip.

The level of qualified SC travel among those with effective recall is compared to the level of SC travel among those without effective 

recall to arrive at “incremental,” or  production-influenced travel

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 130 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Derived Production Influence

 In order to assess whether respondents had 

seen any of the selected productions, film 

posters and still shots of iconic scenes were 

displayed to arrive at a measure of aided recall.  

 However, having seen the film is not enough to 

assess its impact on leisure travel.  The 

respondents who identified having seen the 

production were then asked where it was 

filmed and where it was set.  

 Effective recall for these purposes is qualified 

by having seen the production and knowing 

that it was either filmed or set in South 

Carolina. 

 Overall 31% of the target audience indicates 

having seen any of the selected productions 

and correctly identified the filming location or 

setting. 

 This is the awareness measure that will be used in the 

calculation of incremental, or production-influenced 

South Carolina travel.

18 smari.com

31%

13%

11%

9%

4%

7%

84%

60%

44%

33%

28%

25%

Any Production

The Patriot

The Notebook

Dear John

Diners, Drive-Ins & Dives

Army Wives

Total Recall & Effective Recall                                          

of Selected Productions

Total Recall Effective Recall

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 131 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Derived Production Influence

 The ultimate goal of this research is to assess production impact on South Carolina travel that has already 

occurred.  But it is also interesting to review production impact on the state’s image as a leisure destination 

and impact on likely future travel. 

 Those with effective recall of the South Carolina productions rate the state more favorably and are more 

likely to visit in the next year than those without effective recall. 

19 smari.com

23%

38%

30%

28%

52%

66%

No Effective Recall Effective Recall

South Carolina Rating                                          

as a Place for a Leisure Trip

Very Good

Excellent

18%

36%

36%

38%
54%

74%

No Effective Recall Effective Recall

Likelihood to Visit South Carolina                             

for a Leisure Trip in the Next Year

Somewhat likely

Very likely

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 132 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Derived Production Influence

 This research was designed to arrive at a representative 

measure of influenced travel by using:

 Qualified travel, which for those with effective recall is defined as 

taking the most recent South Carolina trip after seeing the 

production and indicating that a film or TV show was a motivator for 

this trip. This definition of qualified travel has been revised over the 

research iterations to be more exacting.

 Qualified travel for those who do not have effective recall is South 

Carolina travel that was not motivated by routine or to visit family. 

 Effective recall is defined as having seen any of the selected 

productions and correctly identifying the filming location or setting.

 The level of production influence is quantified by 

comparing a test case to a baseline. The test case is 

those with effective production recall; the baseline is 

those without effective recall. 

 The level of influenced travel measured in this research 

is 7.8%.

 This is a noteworthy finding, but this research approach is still 

new and we are still exploring ways to frame what a level of 

influence might be. 

20 smari.com

14.1%

22.0%

No Effective Recall Effective Recall

Qualified South Carolina Travel

7.8% Increment

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 133 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Economic Impact

 Applying average trip spending to the number of influenced traveling HHs allows an estimation of 

production economic impact. 

 The research suggests that in the past ten years, the selected productions may have influenced 

approximately 1.6M South Carolina trips. 

 With average trip spending of $1,113, it is estimated that these productions have generated $1.7B in travel 

revenue for the state over this ten year period. 

21 smari.com

Total Target HHs 
(U.S. HHs east of the Mississippi River)

64.1M

Effective Recall 31%

Aware HHs 19.8M

Incremental Travel 7.8%

Incremental Traveling HHs 1.6M

Avg. Trip Spending from survey data $1,113

Economic Impact $1.7B

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 134 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Estimating Impact by Production

 The reality food show Diners, Drive-Ins & Dives and the romantic and scenic movie Dear John generated the 

strongest individual increments. 

 However, it should be noted that awareness is not unique;  for example, those who saw Dear John might also have 

seen The Patriot. 

22 smari.com

14.7% 14.2% 14.3% 14.4% 14.8%

24.8%

21.8%

18.8%
21.2%

35.4%

Dear John The Patriot The Notebook Army

Wives

Diners, Drive-Ins, &

Dives

No Effective Recall Travel % Effective Recall Travel %

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 135 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Estimating Impact by Production

 Show this to Dudley.

23 smari.com

Production
% of Total 
Increment

Economic Impact 
Over 10 Years

Economic Impact 
per Year

Dear John 20% $352,352,428 $35,235,243

The Patriot 15% $264,295,374 $26,429,537

The Notebook 9% $157,659,038 $15,765,904

Army 
Wives

14% $236,198,377 $23,619,838

Diners, Drive-Ins, & Dives 41% $715,926,780 $71,592,678

Total 100% $1,726,431,997 $172,643,200

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 136 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Production/Advertising Overlap Impact

 About half of the target audience is aware of the latest South Carolina traditional advertising and/or has 

effective recall of the selected productions. 

 Given that the traditional advertising aired in 2012, incremental travel is assessed using qualified travel 

occurring in that calendar year. 

 It seems that a synergy is created when the audience is exposed to the traditional advertising and the 

productions. 

 The productions seem to have a greater solo impact than the traditional advertising, but it is important to 

remember that the traditional advertising is new and the production impact has built over many years. 

24 smari.com

Neither

49%

Traditional 

Advertising 

Only

20%

Effective 

Production 

Recall Only

15%

Both

15%

Awareness Combinations

2.1%

3.2%

4.5%

12.3%

Neither Traditional

Advertising Only

Effective Production

Recall Only

Both

Qualified SC Travel in 2012

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 137 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Key Findings

 Three increasingly conservative quantitative research efforts and four focus groups have 

revealed that television and film productions undoubtedly influence leisure travel. 

 54% of leisure travelers indicate that a production has influenced them to select a vacation destination.

 36% of leisure travelers report that they have visited a location or site that they saw in a production.

 6% of leisure travelers have visited South Carolina in the past 10 years and say that a TV show or movie 

was a major influence in the decision to visit. 

 The most recent and most conservative estimate of incremental travel attributable to the 

selected South Carolina productions is 7.8%. This suggests that they productions may have 

influenced 1.6M household visits to South Carolina and approximately $1.7B in travel revenue 

over the past ten years. 

 The productions that are most likely to influence travel include TV shows about travel or food, 

romance/drama movies or TV shows, and sitcoms.

 The specific production attributes that are most likely to be a major influence on travel include 

coastal scenery, natural scenery, relaxation, historical sites, and iconic locations/landmarks. 

25 smari.com

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 138 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Appendix: Questionnaire

smari.com26

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 139 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Appendix: Questionnaire

smari.com27

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 140 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Appendix: Questionnaire

smari.com28

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 141 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Appendix: Questionnaire

smari.com29

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 142 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Appendix: Questionnaire

smari.com30

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 143 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Appendix: South Carolina Productions

smari.com31

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 144 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Appendix: South Carolina Productions

smari.com32

Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018 
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 145 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

Appendix D.  U.S. Production Incentives At-A-Glance (October 2017) 
 
 
 

Page 146 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 147 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



Attachment to SCPRT's June 27, 2018  
letter to the House Oversight Committee 

Page 148 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

COMMITTEE CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 149 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 150 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee



 

 
 

END NOTES 
1 Visual Summary Figure 1 is compiled from information in the agency’s study materials available online under “Citizens’ 
Interest,” under “House Legislative Oversight Committee Postings and Reports,” and then under “Parks, Recreation, and Tourism, 
Department of” 
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyPHPFiles/ParksRecreationandTouris
m.php (accessed May 24, 2018).  
2 Confirmed accurate by Justin Hancock, SCPRT in April 2018. 
3 Confirmed accurate by Justin Hancock, SCPRT in April 2018. 
4 S.C. Code Ann. Section 51-1-10.   
5 S.C. Code Ann. Section 51-1-60(a). 
6 S.C. Code Ann. Section 51-1-60(b). 
7 S.C. Code Ann. Section 51-1-60(i).  Other than funds specifically allocated to it by legislative appropriation or bond 
authorization. 
8 S.C. Code Ann. Section 51-1-60(g) 
9 S.C. Code Ann. Section 51-1-60(h).  
10 S.C. Code Ann. Section 51-1-60(f).  Also, provided, that all such leases shall contain a clause to the effect that if such property 
ceases to be used as a recreation or park facility the lease shall be void and in the event of a conveyance the deed shall contain a 
clause providing that if such property ceases to be used as a recreation or park facility the title to such property shall revert to 
the department. All plans for the development of such lands shall be subject to the approval of the department and it shall retain 
the right to inspect such lands at such times as it considers necessary to determine if such lands are being used for parks and 
recreation. 
11 S.C. Code Ann. Section 51-1-60(g). 
12 S.C. Code Ann. Section 51-1-60(h). 
13 S.C. Code Ann. Section 51-1-60(c). 
14 S.C. Code Ann. Section 51-1-60(d).  Also, no area, site, building, or other landmark shall be acquired for its historical 
significance without the approval of the Commission of Archives and History. 
15 S.C. Code Ann. Section 51-1-60(e). 
16 S.C. Code Ann. Section 51-1-60.  Also, a survey shall be included to determine the land suitable and desirable to be acquired as 
a part of the state park and outdoor recreational system, due consideration being given to the scenic, recreational, 
archaeological, and other special features attractive to out-of-state visitors and to the people of the State. The results of this 
survey and study should be reported to the Governor and the General Assembly at the earliest practicable time. 
17 Agency PER, Strategic Plan Summary. 
18 Agency PER, Strategic Plan Summary. 
19 Agency PER. 
20 Agency PER, Comprehensive Strategic Plan Chart and Strategic Plan Summary Chart; and email from Justin Hancock, SCPRT to 
Charles Appleby, House Legislative Oversight Committee staff, on July 31, 2018. 
21 Department of Administration, Executive Budget Office, “2016-17 Accountability Report Technical Assistance Guide,” under 
Agency Accountability Reports http://www.admin.sc.gov/files/FY%202016-
17%20Accountability%20Report%20Technical%20Assistance.pdf (accessed July 21, 2017).  See also, Agency PER. 
22 Agency PER. 
23 Email from Justin Hancock, SCPRT, to Charles Appleby, House Legislative Oversight Committee, on May 17, 2018. 
24 Item numbers are the ones utilized in agency’s program evaluation report. 
25 Item numbers are the ones utilized in agency’s program evaluation report. 
26 Item numbers are the ones utilized in agency’s program evaluation report. 
27 Item numbers are the ones utilized in agency’s program evaluation report. 
28 S.C. House of Representatives, House Legislative Oversight Committee, “Letter from PRT to Oversight Subcommittee (June 27, 
2018),” under “Committee Postings and Reports,” under “House Legislative Oversight Committee,” under “Parks, Recreation, and 
Tourism, Department of (DNR),” and under “Correspondence,”  
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/
Letter%20from%20SCPRT%20with%20attachments%20-%20Response%20to%20Subcommittee's%20letter.pdf (accessed July 16, 
2018).  Question 8 through 11. 
29 S.C. House of Representatives, House Legislative Oversight Committee, “Letter from PRT to Oversight Subcommittee (June 27, 
2018),” under “Committee Postings and Reports,” under “House Legislative Oversight Committee,” under “Parks, Recreation, and 
Tourism, Department of (DNR),” and under “Correspondence,”  
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/

                                                 

Page 151 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee

http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyPHPFiles/ParksRecreationandTourism.php
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyPHPFiles/ParksRecreationandTourism.php
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/Letter%20from%20SCPRT%20with%20attachments%20-%20Response%20to%20Subcommittee's%20letter.pdf
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/Letter%20from%20SCPRT%20with%20attachments%20-%20Response%20to%20Subcommittee's%20letter.pdf
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/Letter%20from%20SCPRT%20with%20attachments%20-%20Response%20to%20Subcommittee's%20letter.pdf


 

 
 

                                                                                                                                                             
Letter%20from%20SCPRT%20with%20attachments%20-%20Response%20to%20Subcommittee's%20letter.pdf (accessed July 16, 
2018).  Question 10. 
30 S.C. House of Representatives, House Legislative Oversight Committee, “Letter from PRT to Oversight Subcommittee (June 27, 
2018),” under “Committee Postings and Reports,” under “House Legislative Oversight Committee,” under “Parks, Recreation, and 
Tourism, Department of (DNR),” and under “Correspondence,”  
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/
Letter%20from%20SCPRT%20with%20attachments%20-%20Response%20to%20Subcommittee's%20letter.pdf (accessed July 16, 
2018).  Question 8 and 9. 
31 S.C. House of Representatives, House Legislative Oversight Committee, “Economic Impact Study by AECOM (December 2011),” 
under “Committee Postings and Reports,” under “House Legislative Oversight Committee,” under “Parks, Recreation, and 
Tourism, Department of (DNR),” under “Products and Services of Agency,” and under “Film Commission”  
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/
Economic%20Impact%20Study%20of%20S.C.%20Film%20Commission%20(December%202011).pdf (accessed July 16, 2018). 
32 Analysis of S.C.’s Film Incentives, AECOM (December 2011), page 5.  
33 S.C. Film Project Summary Report (2007-2011); SC Film Project Summary Report (2012); SC Film Project 
Summary Report (2013-2017); and phone call between Justin Hancock, SCPRT, and Charles Appleby, House 
Legislative Oversight Committee staff on August 2, 2018. 
34 S.C. House of Representatives, House Legislative Oversight Committee, “Impact Report by Strategic Marketing and Research, 
Inc. (January 2013),” under “Committee Postings and Reports,” under “House Legislative Oversight Committee,” under “Parks, 
Recreation, and Tourism, Department of (DNR),” under “Products and Services of Agency,” and under “Film Commission” 
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/
S.C.%20Film%20Impact%20Report%20by%20SMARI%20(January%202013).pdf (accessed July 16, 2018). 
35 Film Impact Qualitative and Quantitative Research, Strategic Marketing and Research, Inc. (January 2013), page 
25.  
36 S.C. House of Representatives, House Legislative Oversight Committee, “Letter from PRT to Oversight Subcommittee (June 27, 
2018),” under “Committee Postings and Reports,” under “House Legislative Oversight Committee,” under “Parks, Recreation, and 
Tourism, Department of (DNR),” and under “Correspondence,”  
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/
Letter%20from%20SCPRT%20with%20attachments%20-%20Response%20to%20Subcommittee's%20letter.pdf (accessed July 16, 
2018).  Question 11. 
37 S.C. House of Representatives, House Legislative Oversight Committee, “U.S. Production Incentives Summary Report (Oct. 
2017),” under “Committee Postings and Reports,” under “House Legislative Oversight Committee,” under “Parks, Recreation, and 
Tourism, Department of (DNR),” under “Products and Services of Agency,” and under “Film Commission”  
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/
U.S.%20Production%20Incentives%20Summary%20Report%20(Oct.%202017).pdf (accessed July 16, 2018). 
38 Item numbers are the ones utilized in agency’s program evaluation report. 
39 Item numbers are the ones utilized in agency’s program evaluation report. 

Page 152 of 152 
August 6, 2018 Meeting Packet 

Executive Subcommittee

http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/Letter%20from%20SCPRT%20with%20attachments%20-%20Response%20to%20Subcommittee's%20letter.pdf
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/Letter%20from%20SCPRT%20with%20attachments%20-%20Response%20to%20Subcommittee's%20letter.pdf
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/Letter%20from%20SCPRT%20with%20attachments%20-%20Response%20to%20Subcommittee's%20letter.pdf
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/Economic%20Impact%20Study%20of%20S.C.%20Film%20Commission%20(December%202011).pdf
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/Economic%20Impact%20Study%20of%20S.C.%20Film%20Commission%20(December%202011).pdf
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/S.C.%20Film%20Impact%20Report%20by%20SMARI%20(January%202013).pdf
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/S.C.%20Film%20Impact%20Report%20by%20SMARI%20(January%202013).pdf
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/Letter%20from%20SCPRT%20with%20attachments%20-%20Response%20to%20Subcommittee's%20letter.pdf
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/Letter%20from%20SCPRT%20with%20attachments%20-%20Response%20to%20Subcommittee's%20letter.pdf
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/U.S.%20Production%20Incentives%20Summary%20Report%20(Oct.%202017).pdf
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/ParksRecreationTourism/U.S.%20Production%20Incentives%20Summary%20Report%20(Oct.%202017).pdf

	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Meeting Minutes
	Study Timeline
	Agency Snapshot
	Map of State Parks
	Map of Welcome Centers
	Overview of Agency - Recap
	Legal Directives
	Mission and Vision
	Organizational Chart

	Film Commission
	Overview of the Film Commission
	Employee Information related to the Film Commission
	Revenue and Funding Sources of the Film Commission
	Generated by the Film Commission
	Utilized by the Film Commission

	Strategic Plan and Resource Allocation related to the Film Commission
	Objective 2.1.1:  Recruit film/television projects that provide positive impacts on S.C.'s economy and employment.
	Objective 2.1.2:  Encourage workforce development through educational workshops and production fund grants.

	Products, Services, Customers and Performance of the Film Commission
	Table 5.  List of the film commission’s deliverables.
	Deliverable #54A:  Administer motion picture incentive program – sales and use tax exemption.
	Deliverable #54B:  Administer motion picture incentive program – wage and supplier rebates.
	Deliverable #54C:  Administer motion picture incentive program – product fund grants.
	Deliverable #54D:  Administer motion picture incentive program – low rates for temporary use of state property.
	Data tracked and performance measure associated with Deliverable #54 (A-D)
	Motion Picture Incentive Act - Economic Impact, Return on Investment, History
	Counties in which film projects did and did not occur from 2007 to 2017.
	Summary of film incentive history, amount invested, and return on investment.

	Deliverable #55:  Promote collaborative production and educational efforts between S.C. institutions of higher learning and motion picture related entities.
	Data tracked and performance measure associated with Deliverable #55.
	Deliverable #56:  Provide location scouting assistance to film production companies.
	Data tracked and performance measure associated with Deliverable #56

	Agency Recommendations - Film Commission

	Appendices
	Appendix A.  Analysis of S.C.’s Film Incentives (December 2011)
	Appendix B-1.  Film Project Summary Report (Calendar Year 2007 - 2011)
	Appendix B-2.  Film Project Summary Report (Calendar Year 2012)
	Appendix B-3.  Film Project Summary Report (Calendar Year 2013 - 2017)
	Appendix C.  Film Impact Qualitative and Quantitative Research (January 2013)
	Appendix D.  U.S. Production Incentives At-A-Glance (October 2017)

	Committee Contact Information
	End Notes



